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PART I

ITEM 1.  BUSINESS

Company Overview

We provide information technology services and solutions to U.S. defense and federal civilian government agencies. We offer our customers
solutions and expertise to support their mission-essential needs at any stage of program, product development or business lifecycle through five
service areas: systems engineering, enterprise integration, operational logistics, business process outsourcing and advanced engineering and
technology. As a systems integrator, we apply these five service areas to enable our customers to achieve interoperability between different
business processes and information technology systems.

We were founded in 1966 and have established long-standing, successful relationships with our federal government customers. We currently
have over 200 active contractual engagements across 40 federal government agencies. Our customers include the Department of Defense
(including all major agencies within the Department of Defense), the Department of State, the Department of Homeland Security, the
Department of Transportation, the Department of the Treasury, NASA, the Department of Justice, and the Department of Health and Human
Services.

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, or fiscal 2007, we derived approximately 65% of our revenues from the Department of Defense,
including agencies within the intelligence community, and approximately 35% of our revenues from federal civilian government agencies. Our
contract with the Department of State for the provision of passport processing and support services, which is our largest revenue-generating
contract or task order under indefinite delivery/indefinite quantity, or ID/IQ, contracts, accounted for approximately 15% of our revenues for
fiscal 2007. For fiscal 2007, our top ten revenue-generating contracts or task orders under ID/IQ contracts accounted for approximately 38% of
our revenues. Aside from our contract for passport processing and support services, no single contract or task order under ID/IQ contracts
exceeded 4% of our revenues for fiscal 2007. We acted as the prime contractor on contractual engagements that provided approximately 80% of
our revenues for fiscal 2007.

From the fiscal year ended March 31, 1997 through fiscal 2007, we increased our revenues at a compound annual growth rate of 33.3%, and we
have been profitable in every year during that period. Our revenues for fiscal 2007 were $409.4 million. As of March 31, 2007, our total backlog
was $974.8 million and our funded backlog was $224.4 million. For a discussion of how we calculate backlog, see �Backlog, page 12.�

Over the three year period ended March 31, 2007, we have won 100% of competitively awarded contracts on which we were the incumbent.
During fiscal 2007, we achieved an overall win rate, including the incumbent contracts referred to above, of approximately 58%. For a
discussion of how we calculate our win rate, see �Business Development, page 10.�

We emphasize three essential attributes�a commitment to strong partnerships, integrity in all dealings and results for our customers�in order to
develop long-term relationships with our customers and achieve the highest quality workforce in our industry. Our senior management team
includes a core group of executives who have grown our company over the course of the past two decades. Our team has been supplemented
with strategic hires and is supported by a high quality staff of approximately 2,700 employees. A majority of our senior management team,
including our chief executive officer, has served in the U.S. armed forces, and this experience has provided us with significant knowledge of
these organizations. As of March 31, 2007, approximately 53% of our employees held Secret or Top Secret clearances, which are necessary to
work on classified contracts. Additionally, our management team and our employees have a personal stake in our continued growth and success
as they own a significant portion of our common stock.
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Industry Background

The federal government is the largest purchaser of information technology services and solutions in the United States. Information technology
accounts for a significant portion of the federal government�s spending, and, according to INPUT, an independent federal government market
research firm, federal government information technology spending is expected to grow from $79.8 billion in federal fiscal year 2007 to
$101.7 billion in federal fiscal year 2012. Of the total information technology spending, INPUT forecasts that the contracted-out portion will
grow from $67.6 billion in federal fiscal year 2007 to $88.3 billion in federal fiscal year 2012. Information technology professional services and
outsourcing, which are the primary components of our systems integration services, are expected by INPUT to be among the fastest growing
segments of the federal information technology market in the next five years.

We believe that over the next several years the continued increase in the federal government�s demand for information technology services and
solutions will be primarily driven by the following factors:

Increased Spending on National Defense, Intelligence and Homeland Security

The continuing Global War on Terror and increased focus on U.S. border security have intensified the federal government�s commitment to
strengthen our country�s military, intelligence and homeland security capabilities and increased the need for systems integration solutions capable
of supporting this commitment. According to INPUT, national defense, intelligence and homeland security spending is projected to continue to
grow over the next several years as the Global War on Terror, including the demand for intelligence capabilities and reconstruction efforts in
Afghanistan and Iraq, defense transformation and homeland security remain high priorities for the federal government.

Demand for Greater Government Efficiency and Effectiveness

Federal government agencies are under increasing pressure from the Office of Management and Budget to be more efficient and effective, and as
a result they are re-engineering their business processes, consolidating redundant systems, upgrading their information technology capabilities
and expanding e-government services. As an example of this trend, the Department of Homeland Security has sought to modernize its legacy
systems, improve security, enhance business intelligence capabilities and institute mature software development processes. In addition, in order
to enhance efficiency, the federal government has increased its use of lower cost, open architecture systems using commercial off-the-shelf, or
COTS, hardware and software, which are displacing the single purpose, custom systems historically favored by the federal government and
driving demand for systems integration services.

Increased Federal Government Reliance on Outsourcing

Federal government agencies are increasingly adopting outsourcing of information technology services, in particular integration services, and
business processes. Federal agencies are striving to maintain their core functions and meet efficiency and effectiveness demands, including
information technology upgrade and competitive sourcing requirements, with limited technical resources and a shrinking workforce. As a result,
according to INPUT, more than 45% of federal information technology workers will be eligible to retire by federal fiscal year 2008, further
straining federal government personnel resources and increasing reliance on external providers. According to INPUT, federal information
technology will experience the largest growth among the different segments of information technology services and will increase from
$14.4 billion in federal fiscal year 2007 to $19.7 billion by federal fiscal year 2012.

Increased Emphasis on Defense System Sustainment and Modernization

To balance the costs of new initiatives with the costs of ongoing military operations, the Department of Defense is emphasizing upgrading
existing platforms to next generation technologies rather than
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procuring completely new systems. For example, rather than replacing certain maritime command and control systems in its fleet, the U.S. Navy
has invested in significant upgrades, using the latest information technology and weapons systems. To achieve these upgrades in an environment
of military support personnel reductions, the armed services are increasingly dependent on highly skilled contractors that can provide the full
spectrum of information technology services and solutions needed to support these activities.

Our Competitive Strengths

We believe that we possess the following key competitive strengths:

Strong Presence in Key Strategic Areas and Deep Knowledge of Our Diverse Customer Base

We provide services in areas that we believe are a high priority for the federal government, such as defense transformation, homeland security
and the Global War on Terror, and we believe that our extensive experience with our customers provides us with significant insight into their
missions and needs. We currently have contractual engagements across approximately 40 federal government agencies. Through these
long-standing relationships, we have developed an extensive knowledge of our customers� business processes and information technology
architectures, which enables us to deliver innovative integrated solutions to meet their changing needs. The ability to apply experience gained
from previous contractual engagements across a diverse customer base is a key criterion in federal government evaluation of companies
providing these services.

Outstanding Record of Past Performance Fueling Growth

We have a strong record of past performance with our government customers, as evidenced by our customer surveys and feedback. In 2005, we
were chosen as the Mid-Size Contractor of the Year at the Greater Washington Government Contractor Awards. Our emphasis on customer
satisfaction is reflected by a win rate of 100% over the three year period ended March 31, 2007, on competitively awarded contracts on which
we were the incumbent.

Experienced Management Team and Highly-Skilled Workforce

Our senior management team includes a core group of executives who have grown our company over the course of the past two decades. A
majority of our senior management team, including our chief executive officer, has served in the U.S. armed forces, and this experience has
provided us with significant knowledge of these organizations. We have also supplemented our team with strategic hires. In addition, we have a
long-standing commitment to employee development, and have implemented a broad range of internal training programs focusing on technical,
managerial and account management skills, including discrete programs for our program managers, supervisors and business development
personnel, always with a strong focus on customer service and satisfaction. As of March 31, 2007, approximately 53% of our employees held
Secret or Top Secret clearances, which are necessary to work on classified contracts.

Proven Business Development Infrastructure

We have developed systems and processes modeled after industry best practices to successfully market, develop, acquire and expand contracts
with the federal government. The Stanley account management process represents a disciplined, team-based approach to customer relationships
and business development, and emphasizes our contribution to the strategic organizational objectives of the customer. We support our business
development professionals, who are highly experienced in marketing to our government customers, with business intelligence resources and
systems and processes that include a capture management system providing real-time reporting of pipeline and bid status. As a result, for the
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twelve months ended March 31, 2007, we achieved an overall win rate, including bids where we were the incumbent contractor, of
approximately 58%. We believe that our ability to collaborate internally, our dedicated support staff and our consistent processes make us
particularly well-suited to take advantage of increasingly streamlined government procurement procedures.

Proven Track Record of Acquisitions and Integration

We believe that an integral part of our growth is our ability to identify, acquire and integrate companies that expand our systems integration
capabilities and provide us with access to new customers and contract vehicles. We have disciplined acquisition processes for identifying,
acquiring and integrating target companies and successfully growing these businesses post-acquisition. Our disciplined approach to acquisitions
also ensures that we align not only the systems of a target company but also its culture in order to retain and expand both our customer and
employee bases.

Commitment to Corporate Culture

Our success as a systems integrator and provider of information technology services and solutions is highly dependent on our employees. We
have a culture focused on long-term relationships with our customers and achieving the highest quality workforce in our industry. We believe we
have been successful in developing a culture that focuses on developing our employees throughout their career and promoting them within our
organization. In 2007, we were named to FORTUNE® Magazine�s list of �100 Best Companies to Work For�. We emphasize three essential
attributes�a commitment to strong partnerships, integrity in all our dealings and results for our customers. We reinforce these principles regularly
in our recruiting process, training programs, proposals, company meetings and internal communications. Additionally, our management team
and our employees have a personal stake in our continued growth and success as they own a significant portion of our common stock.

Corporate Infrastructure Positioned for Growth

During the past several years we have made significant investments in our corporate infrastructure in anticipation of future growth. These
investments include ISO 9001-2000 certified processes, internal controls, sales and marketing and account management processes, effective
web-based project management tools and relocation to an expanded headquarters. This infrastructure and the supporting business processes
based on industry best practices result in operational efficiencies positioning us for continued growth through contract wins and acquisition.

Our Business Strategy

Our strategy is to continue to profitably grow our business as a provider of information technology services and solutions to the federal
government and to focus on our strength as a systems integrator providing lifecycle solutions to our customers. Key elements of our strategy
include:

Focusing on Opportunities to Support Mission-Essential Programs as a Prime Contractor

We have a proud heritage of providing mission-essential support for federal government customers as a prime contractor, and as a result we have
developed specialized expertise in the systems, business processes and requirements of our customers. As a result, we have developed a deep
functional understanding of our customers� requirements and missions, which places us in a strong position to win future prime contractor
engagements.
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Cross-Selling Services and Expanding Customer Presence

We will continue our practice of cross-selling services to expand the breadth and depth of our customer engagements and create opportunities to
provide additional solutions to our customers. We will continue to utilize our centralized account management process, which is a highly
disciplined, team-based approach to customer relationship management, to enhance our understanding of our customers� needs among our
division managers, program managers and customer segment leads, enabling them to offer our customers our full range of service expertise. This
team will work cooperatively to generate new sales and internal growth within existing customer contracts, and will play an essential role in our
ongoing efforts to cross-sell services to both existing and new customers.

Expanding Our Customer and Contract Base

Our current contract base includes twelve prime contractor positions on government-wide acquisition contracts, or GWACs, and agency-specific
ID/IQ contracts. We intend to aggressively pursue task orders under these vehicles in order to maximize our revenue and strengthen our
customer relationships. We believe that our ability to provide advanced engineering and technical solutions to our customers, our strong past
performance record and our knowledge of our customers� needs position us to win additional task orders under these prime contract vehicles. We
also intend to expand our contract base into areas with significant growth opportunities by leveraging our industry reputation and long-term
customer relationships. We anticipate that this expansion will enable us to pursue additional higher value work and further diversify our revenue
base across the federal government. Our long-term relationships with federal government agencies, together with our GWAC and ID/IQ
vehicles, give us opportunities to win contracts with new customers.

Being an Employer of Choice and Developing Top Talent

Our practice is to promote people from within our company, which we believe fosters a culture of investing in our employees. To ensure that we
have future leadership, we will continue to develop our managerial workforce at the task, project, program and executive level through ongoing
company-sponsored training and development programs. In addition, we intend to continue to attract and retain skilled professionals, including
managers, engineers, analysts, programmers, technicians and support specialists, in order to ensure that we are able to meet our customers� needs.
We continue to retain our employees by offering competitive compensation and incentive plans, opportunities for career growth,
company-supported education programs, and challenging work assignments at over 100 locations around the world.

Pursuing Strategic Acquisitions

We continue to pursue strategic acquisitions that complement and broaden our existing customer base, increase our presence in strategic
geographic markets, expand our capabilities as a systems integrator and provide access to prime contract vehicles. We employ a disciplined
methodology to evaluate and select acquisition candidates and have used it to make five strategic acquisitions since 2000. These acquisitions
enhanced our services portfolio, broadened our customer base and expanded the geographic reach of our company.

Our Services

As a systems integrator, our service portfolio is comprised of five service areas, each customizable to meet unique customer needs. These are
systems engineering, enterprise integration, operational logistics, business process outsourcing and advanced engineering and technology. Our
end-to-end information technology services provide our customers with solutions throughout the design, build, delivery, and
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operation and modernization stages of a program. By combining knowledge and successful implementation of best-of-breed processes with
intelligent application of emergent technologies, we help our customers meet critical goals and milestones on time and within budget in support
of their operational objectives.

Systems Engineering

Our systems engineering services apply formal engineering methods and practices to analyze, design, develop, deploy and modernize
information systems providing high-end capability for Command, Control, Communications, Computers, Intelligence, Surveillance and
Reconnaissance, or C4ISR, functions, operations, logistics and business systems. Systems engineering activities are provided by teams of senior
system, software, data and communications engineers who are supported by cleared personnel, infrastructure and facilities.

Our software and systems engineering programs apply best practices using the Carnegie-Mellon Software Engineering Institute (SEI) Capability
Maturity Model Integration, or CMMI. Some of our business units have achieved an official SEI CMMI Maturity rating of Level 3; other
business units operate at the highest level, CMMI Maturity Level 5. Our CMMI ratings have been achieved through official SEI Appraisals led
by independent, authorized SEI Appraisers. Our primary software and systems engineering service offerings are:

•  systems design and enterprise architecture development;

•  software engineering and development;

•  security engineering and information assurance;

•  Command and Control, or C2, and C4ISR engineering and integration;

•  systems production and deployment;

•  information and data engineering and development;

•  network and IT infrastructure engineering;

•  systems engineering and technical assistance; and

•  independent verification and validation.

Enterprise Integration

Our enterprise integration services provide interoperability of data, functionality and information management to business processes, users and
other information systems in order to support our customers� missions. Enabled by our expert knowledge of COTS packages, which include
enterprise resource planning, or ERP, and business process management technologies, we integrate new functionality with existing applications
and infrastructure to enhance horizontal interoperability across the enterprise. Our service offerings that support enterprise integration include:

•  business process development and workflow automation;

•  COTS software integration;

•  enterprise content management;

•  enterprise application integration;

•  document management;

•  e-government and e-business solutions; and
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•  ERP blueprinting, configuration and implementation.
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Operational Logistics

Our operational logistics services provide resource, supply chain, maintenance and sustainment planning, management and support to federal
government customers, principally to U.S. military operations. Our solution sets include personnel with broad logistics experience, a family of
proven logistics business applications and logistics engineers, and support personnel dedicated to our customers� missions. Our operational
logistics service offerings include:

•  logistics engineering;

•  logistics business systems;

•  system fielding and lifecycle support;

•  training program support;

•  supply management and warehouse operations;

•  maintenance engineering;

•  documentation and e-manual development; and

•  large-scale military deployment planning and embarkation support.

Business Process Outsourcing

Our business process outsourcing services offer engineers, analysts and subject-matter experts in key business functions, such as requirements
analysis, project and program management, operational support, administration and budgeting. Our business process outsourcing team members
bring with them proven techniques for process and product improvement, which we believe continue to enhance organizational performance
after the contractual engagement�s goals have been achieved. Our business process outsourcing service offerings include:

•  facility operations;

•  business process improvement;

•  program and project management;

•  functional analysis; and

•  developmental and operational test and evaluation.

Advanced Engineering and Technology

Our advanced engineering and technology capabilities deliver expert analysis, design, prototyping and engineering to the U.S. defense and
federal civilian government customers implementing state-of-the-art and emergent technologies to enhance information exchange,
interoperability, data-sharing capabilities, C4ISR and weapons systems effectiveness. Our primary advanced engineering and technology
offerings are:

•  sensor integration;

•  service oriented architectures;
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•  microsystems design/development;

•  fiber/electro optics;

•  microelectronics; and

•  domain and situational awareness.
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Qualifications

We apply proven and repeatable quality control and management processes to ensure effective and efficient solution delivery for our customers.
The foundation of this effort is our Quality Management System, or QMS, which operates in accordance with industry methodologies, including
ISO 9001-2000, Six Sigma, and Lean Manufacturing, as well as the Software Engineering Institute�s CMMI Level III. We apply QMS to our
contract and task management procedures, operations support, systems and software engineering and systems integration. Our program
managers have been trained to adapt CMMI Level III to the evolving technology, practices and priorities of our customers, thereby mitigating
program and task risk, while retaining its core principles and processes. In particular, we have adapted QMS to meet the specific integration
needs of the JSF Program Office, the U.S. Marine Corps, the U.S. Army, the Department of State and other federal civilian government
customers.

Strategic Acquisitions

We have supplemented our internal growth and expanded our service offerings and customer base through five strategic acquisitions since 2000.
In January 2000, we acquired GCI Information Services, Inc., or GCI, broadening our electronic records management services and adding the
Department of Commerce and Department of the Treasury as customers. In September 2002, we acquired CCI, Incorporated, or CCI, expanding
our operational logistics portfolio and adding a strong presence with the Naval Air Systems Command. In December 2003, we acquired Fuentez
Systems Concepts, Inc., or FSC, providing us with additional systems engineering, production, integration and C4ISR expertise, and adding the
Space and Naval Warfare Systems Command, the Department of Homeland Security and agencies within the intelligence community as our
customers.

In February 2006, we completed the acquisition of Morgan Research Corporation, or Morgan. This acquisition provides us with a presence in
Huntsville, Alabama, which, as a result of the Department of Defense�s Base Realignment and Closure program, or BRAC, will be the new
headquarters of the Army Materiel Command, the Army Space and Missile Defense Command and a substantial portion of the Missile Defense
Agency. In addition, this acquisition combines the specialized engineering and technology expertise of Morgan with our systems integration
capabilities, and provides us with additional key prime contract vehicles. This acquisition enables us to provide complementary information
technology and systems engineering services and to offer an expanded suite of solutions to our customers.

Subsequent to the end of our fiscal 2007 year, we completed the acquisition of Techrizon LLC. The acquisition combines the specialized
expertise of Techrizon with Stanley�s proven systems integration capabilities. The two companies provide complementary information
technology services and together will offer an expanded suite of solutions for their combined customer base. Techrizon provides support to the
U.S. Army�s Communications-Electronics Life Cycle Management Command and the Fires Center of Excellence. Techrizon has also provided
support to the U.S. Army�s Field Artillery School since 1976. The acquisition reinforces our strategy to expand presence in key markets
positively impacted by the Base Realignment and Closure, or BRAC, process.

Customers

We have successfully established long-standing relationships with many governmental agencies. We currently have over 200 active contractual
engagements across 40 federal government agencies. Our customers include the Department of Defense (including all major agencies within the
Department of Defense), the Department of State, the Department of Homeland Security, the Department of Transportation, the Department of
the Treasury, NASA, the Department of Justice, and the Department of Health and Human Services. We have served customers that provided
over 90% of our revenues for fiscal 2007 for an average of thirteen years. We believe our long-standing relationships are due in large
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part to our customer-centric account management process, our technical expertise and proven performance on individual contracts.

For fiscal 2007, we derived approximately 65% of our revenues from the Department of Defense, including agencies within the intelligence
community, as compared to 70% in fiscal 2005 and 61% in fiscal 2006. Approximately 35% of our fiscal 2007 revenues were from federal
civilian government agencies. In fiscal 2005 and 2006, approximately 30% and 39% of our revenues were from federal civilian government
agencies. Our largest customer group, which includes five separate agencies, is the U.S. Army, which accounted for approximately 35% of
revenues for fiscal 2007. In fiscal 2005 and 2006, the U.S. Army accounted for approximately 29% and 25%, respectively, of our revenues. Our
contract with the Department of State for the provision of passport processing and support services, which is our largest revenue-generating
contract, accounted for approximately 15% of our revenues for fiscal 2007 as compared to 15% in fiscal 2005 and 19% in fiscal 2006. Contracts
for which we acted as the prime contractor represented approximately 80% of our revenues for fiscal 2005, 2006 and 2007.

Business Development

Our account management process is a highly disciplined, team-based approach to customer relationship management and business development
designed to understand our customers, their organizations and their mission. Our scalable process, modeled after industry best practices and
refined over years of application, identifies sales opportunities well in advance of contract competition and guides the lead generation and
development process, focusing limited resources on achieving growth objectives while providing the basis for making strategic decisions in
meeting both existing and new customer needs and opportunities.

Systems and processes developed in support of our business development process include a capture management system that aggregates
customer data throughout the lead identification process and from previous contractual engagements and third party sources, ultimately
facilitating the bid decision and proposal process. The system also provides us with real-time reporting of pipeline and bid status. The strategic
operations organization also includes a business intelligence function facilitating program account opportunity reviews, sales training, research
and competitive analyses.

Our business development professionals are highly experienced in marketing to our government customers and have extensive knowledge of
both the services and solutions we offer, as well as the particular customer�s organization, mission, culture and technology initiatives. These
professionals also possess a working knowledge of the marketing limitations that are specific to the government arena, including government
funding systems, conflict of interest restrictions, procurement integrity limitations and other pertinent procedural requirements. In fulfilling its
mission, the business development organization cooperates closely with the various operations groups and other support organizations.

During fiscal 2007, we achieved an overall win rate of approximately 58%. Overall win rate represents the number of bids won as a percentage
of the total number of bids submitted. We also measure our win rate with respect to competitively awarded contracts on which we are the
incumbent contractor. Over the three year period ended March 31, 2007, we achieved a win rate of 100% of such contracts.

Existing Contract Profile

Contract Types

We currently have more than 200 active contractual engagements, each employing one of three types of price structures: cost-plus-fee,
time-and-materials or fixed-price.

Cost-Plus-Fee Contracts.  Cost-plus-fee contracts provide for reimbursement of costs, to the extent that such costs are
reasonable, allowable and allocable to the contract, and for the payment of a �fee,�
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which essentially represents the profit margin negotiated between the contractor and the contracting agency. There are three basic types of
cost-plus-fee contracts. Cost-plus-fixed-fee contracts provide for a negotiated fee that is fixed at inception and does not vary with actual costs.
Cost-plus-award-fee contracts provide for a fee consisting of a base amount fixed at inception and an award amount which varies based on the
federal government�s evaluation of contractor performance. Cost-plus-incentive-fee contracts provide for an initially negotiated fee that is
adjusted based on a formula that provides, within limits, for increases or decreases based on the relationship of total allowable costs to target
costs.

Contracts may require completion of defined tasks or performance of a specific number of hours of service. Our total cost incurred on our
cost-plus-fee contracts cannot exceed the funded cost ceiling set forth in the contract without the approval of the agency. If a contracted task has
not been completed or the specific number of hours of service have not been performed at the time the authorized cost is expended, we may be
required to complete the work and be reimbursed for the additional costs with no increase in fee or the fee may be reduced proportionately to the
number of hours actually provided. Even though cost-plus-fee contracts are generally thought to involve a relatively low degree of risk, we try to
carefully manage our cost-plus-fee contracts to ensure that they are performed within the estimated cost and that the required work is completed
and/or the minimum hours are provided.

Time-and-Materials Contracts.  Under a time-and-materials contract, our compensation is based on a fixed hourly rate
established for specified labor or skill categories. We are paid at the established hourly rates for the hours we expend
performing the work specified in the contract. Labor costs, overhead, general and administrative costs and profit are
included in the fixed hourly rate. Materials, subcontractors, travel and other direct costs are reimbursed at actual costs
plus an allocation of indirect costs without fee. We make critical pricing assumptions and decisions when developing
and proposing time-and-materials labor rates. We risk incurring a loss of profitability if our actual costs exceed the
costs incorporated into the fixed hourly labor rate.

Fixed-Price Contracts.  In a fixed-price contract, we must complete the work to receive the price, which is fixed and is
not affected by the cost of performance. Thus, if our costs are greater than the price, we will suffer a loss and if our
price is greater than the costs, we will realize a profit. Because we agree to accept the cost risk for the contract, there is
greater risk involved with performing this type of contract. However, if work is performed or solutions are developed
more efficiently than anticipated, there is the possibility of receiving higher profit margins than those typically
recognized on cost-plus-fee and time-and-materials contracts.

The following table summarizes our historical contract mix, measured as a percentage of total revenues, for the periods indicated:

Fiscal Year Ended
March 31,
2005 2006 2007

Cost-plus-fee 60 % 62 % 52 %
Time-and-materials 11 % 20 % 32 %
Fixed-price 29 % 18 % 16 %

Because the customer usually specifies the type of contract for a particular contractual engagement, we generally do not influence the choice of
contract type. However, where we do have the opportunity to influence the contract type, and where customer requirements are clear, we prefer
time-and-materials and fixed-price arrangements rather than cost-plus-fee arrangements because time-and-materials and fixed-price contracts, as
compared with cost-plus-fee contracts, generally provide greater opportunity for the customer to save money and for us to generate higher
margins.
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Contract Vehicles

We compete for task orders through a variety of arrangements, or contract vehicles, including GWACs, blanket purchase agreements, GSA
schedules and agency-specific ID/IQ contracts. For a description of these contract vehicles, see �Government Contracting and Regulations�. We
hold a number of GWACs, agency-specific ID/IQ contracts and GSA schedule contracts. These are popular contract award methods, offering
more flexible, cost-effective and rapid procurement processes.

Backlog

We define backlog as the amount of revenues we expect to realize (i) over the remaining base contract performance period and (ii) from the
exercise of option periods that we reasonably believe will be exercised, from signed contracts in existence as of the measurement date. We do
not include contract ceiling values under GWAC or ID/IQ contracts in our backlog calculation. We also do not include in backlog (i) the
expected amount of revenues that would be realized if, and when, we were successful in the re-compete of signed contracts in existence as of the
measurement date or (ii) the expected amount of revenues that would be realized from future unidentified growth on signed contracts and task
orders in existence as of the measurement date.

We define funded backlog as the portion of our backlog for which funding currently is appropriated and obligated to us under a signed contract
or task order by the purchasing agency, or otherwise authorized for payment to us by a customer upon completion of a specified portion of work,
less the amount of revenue we have previously recognized under the contract. Our funded backlog does not include the full potential value of our
contracts, because Congress often appropriates funds to be used by an agency for a particular program or contract on a yearly or quarterly basis,
even though the contract may call for performance over a number of years. As a result, contracts typically are only partially funded at any point
during their term, and all or some of the work to be performed under the contracts may remain unfunded unless and until Congress makes
subsequent appropriations and the procuring agency allocates funding to the contract.

As of March 31, 2006, our total backlog was $845.3 million and funded backlog was $160.9 million. Our total and funded backlog was $974.8
million and $224.4 million, respectively, as of March 31, 2007.

Partnering

Strong industry partnerships with leading vendors and other systems integrators provide a valuable source of information regarding new
technology trends and techniques. Similar to our approach for managing customer relationships, we designate partnership leads responsible for
understanding the product roadmaps of specific technologies and for working closely with vendors such as EMC/Documentum, Oracle, SAP and
Sun Microsystems. We seek to utilize the research and development investments of our partners for our customers� benefit. These partnerships
enable us to provide significant additional capabilities to our customers, including technology and software services that are not otherwise
available directly from us.

Subcontractors

When we act as a prime contractor, as we typically do, we derive revenue either through our own work or through the efforts of our
subcontractors. As part of the contract bidding process, we may enter into teaming agreements with subcontractors to enhance our ability to bid
on large, complex assignments or to address more completely a particular customer�s requirements. Teaming agreements and subcontracting
relationships are useful because they permit us, as a prime contractor, to compete more effectively on a wider range of projects. In addition, we
may engage a subcontractor to perform a discrete task on an engagement or a subcontractor may approach us because of our position as a prime
contractor. When we
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are a prime contractor on an engagement, we are ultimately responsible for the overall engagement as well as the performance of our
subcontractors.

We estimate that revenues derived from work performed by our subcontractors represented approximately 31% of our revenues for fiscal 2007.
As discussed further in �Risk Factors,� if our subcontractors fail to perform their contractual obligations, our performance and reputation as a
prime contractor and our ability to obtain future business could suffer and as a result our financial condition and results of operations could
decline.

Competition

Despite consolidation over the past several years, the federal information technology services and solutions industry is comprised of a large
number of enterprises ranging from small, niche-oriented companies to multi-billion dollar corporations with a major presence throughout the
federal government. Because of the diverse requirements of federal government customers and the highly competitive nature of large federal
contracting initiatives, corporations frequently form teams to pursue contract opportunities. Prime contractors leading large proposal efforts
select team members on the basis of their relevant capabilities and experience particular to each opportunity. As a result of these circumstances,
companies that are competitors for one opportunity may be team members for another opportunity. In each of our five service areas, we
generally bid against companies of varying sizes and specialties. Our competitors include large defense and information technology prime
contractors, as well as a number of smaller federal contractors with specialized capabilities. We compete on the basis of our technical abilities,
customer relationships, past performance, cost containment, reputation and ability to provide quality personnel.

Employees

We have approximately 2,700 employees, located in 28 states, Washington, D.C. and eight foreign countries. The depth and breadth of the
security clearances held by our employees is instrumental in allowing us to compete for, and work on, classified projects. As of March 31, 2007,
approximately 53% of our employees held Secret or Top Secret clearances. None of our employees is represented by a labor union or subject to
a collective bargaining agreement. We believe that our relations with our employees are good.

Intellectual Property

Our solutions are not generally dependent on patent protection. We currently have eleven pending patent applications outstanding. While we
believe these patent applications are valid, we do not consider our business to be dependent on the issuance or protection of these patents in any
material way.

We have a number of trade secrets that contribute to our success and competitive position, and we endeavor to protect the secrecy of this
proprietary information. While we believe that retaining continuing protection of our trade secrets and confidential information is important, we
are not materially dependent on any specific trade secret or group of trade secrets.

Company Website and Information

Our website can be found on the Internet at www.stanleyassociates.com. The website contains information about us and our operations. Through
a link to the Investor Relations section of our website, copies of each of our filings with the SEC on Form 10-K, Form 10-Q and Form 8-K and
all amendments to those reports can be viewed and downloaded free of charge as soon as reasonably practicable after the reports and
amendments are electronically filed with or furnished to the SEC.
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You may request a copy of the materials identified in the preceding paragraph, at no cost, by writing or telephoning us at the following address
or telephone number:

Stanley, Inc.
Attention: Investment Relations
3101 Wilson Boulevard, Suite 700
Arlington, VA 22201
Telephone: (703) 684-1125

ITEM 1A.  RISK FACTORS

Any of the risks described below could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition and operating results.

Risks Related to Our Business

We depend on contracts with federal government agencies for substantially all of our revenues. If our relationships with these agencies were
harmed, our revenues and operating results could decline.

Revenues from federal government contracts, either as a prime contractor or as a subcontractor, accounted for nearly 100% of our revenues for
the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. We believe that federal government contracts will continue to be the source of substantially all of our
revenues for the foreseeable future. For this reason, any issue that compromises our relationship with agencies of the federal government in
general, or with the Department of Defense or Department of State in particular would cause serious harm to our business. Among the key
factors in maintaining our relationships with federal government agency customers are our performance on individual contracts and task orders,
the strength of our professional reputation and the relationships of our key executives with customer personnel. To the extent that our
performance does not meet customer expectations, or our reputation or relationships with one or more key customers are impaired, our revenues
and operating results could decline as a result.

Changes in the spending policies or budget priorities of the federal government, and the Department of Defense or Department of State in
particular, could cause us to lose revenues.

Changes in federal government fiscal or spending policies, or in the Department of Defense or the Department of State budget allocations, could
directly affect our financial performance. Among the factors that could harm our business are:

•  curtailment of the federal government�s use of technology services firms;

•  a significant decline in spending by the federal government in general or by specific departments or agencies in
particular;

•  reductions in federal government programs or requirements;

•  a shift in spending to federal programs and agencies that we do not support or where we currently do not have
contracts or key relationships;

•  delays in the payment of our invoices by government payment offices;

•  federal governmental shutdowns, such as the shutdown that occurred during the government�s 1996 fiscal year,
and other potential delays in the government appropriations process, such as federal agencies having to operate under
a continuing funding resolution because of delays in Congressional budget appropriations;
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•  emergency spending that reduces funds available for other government priorities, such as the emergency spending
for relief following hurricanes Katrina and Rita; and

•  general economic and political conditions, including any event that reduces federal tax receipts or results in a
change in spending priorities of the federal government.

These or other factors could cause federal government agencies and departments to reduce their purchases under contracts, to exercise their right
to terminate contracts or not to exercise options to renew contracts, any of which could cause us to lose revenues.

In particular, revenues earned from contracts with the Department of Defense, including from subcontracts having the Department of Defense as
the ultimate purchaser, represented approximately 65% of our revenues for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. In the past, the U.S. defense
budget has declined from time to time, resulting in a slowing of new program starts, program delays and program cancellations. These
reductions may cause defense-related government contractors to experience declining revenues, increased pressure on operating margins and, in
some cases, net losses. Current federal government spending levels on defense-related programs is in part related to the U.S. military operations
in Afghanistan and Iraq and may not be sustainable, including as a result of changes in government leadership, policies or priorities. Future
levels of expenditures and authorizations for defense-related programs may decrease or shift to programs in areas where we do not provide
services. Any such decline or shift in defense-related expenditures could harm our revenues and operating results.

In addition, any limitations imposed on spending by other federal government agencies that result from efforts to reduce the federal deficit may
limit both the continued funding of our existing contracts and our ability to obtain additional contracts. Our backlog consists exclusively of
contracts with federal departments and agencies, and the continuation of these contracts, or award of additional contracts from these agencies,
could be materially harmed by federal government spending reductions or budget cutbacks at these departments or agencies.

Our revenues may decline materially if we are unable to obtain a new award of our passport processing services contract with the
Department of State in September 2007 or if we are unable to renew any of our other significant contracts.

We earn a significant portion of our revenues from the provision of passport processing and support services to the Department of State.
Revenues from these services were approximately 15% of our revenues for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. The fixed initial term of our
contract with the Department of State for the provision of passport processing and support services has expired, and we are currently performing
these services pursuant to the Department of State�s exercise of a one-year renewal option that expires in September 2007. We currently expect
the Department of State to subject this contract to recompetition before awarding a new contract and while we will participate in the
recompetition there can be no guarantee of acceptance of our proposal. Our revenues may decline materially if we are unable to obtain a renewal
of this contract or any of our other significant contracts. This contract is related but separate from the recently awarded ten year contract worth
$164 million with the State Department to conduct passport book personalization services in up to two contractor-supplied and operated turnkey
facilities.

We may not realize the full value of our backlog, which may result in lower than expected revenues.

Our total backlog represents the amount of revenues we expect to realize over the remaining base contract performance period and from the
exercise of all option periods that we reasonably believe will be exercised, in each case from signed contracts in existence as of the measurement
date. We do not include contract ceilings for GWACs or agency-specific ID/IQ contracts in our backlog calculation. Congress typically
appropriates funds for our federal government customers on an annual basis, even though their
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contracts with us may call for performance that is expected to take a number of years. As a result, contracts typically are only partially funded at
any point during their term, and all or some of the work to be performed under the contracts may remain unfunded unless and until Congress
makes subsequent appropriations and the procuring agency allocates funding to the contract.

We may never realize some of the revenues that are included in our total backlog, and there is a higher degree of risk in this regard with respect
to unfunded backlog. As of March 31, 2007, our total backlog was approximately $974.8 million, of which only approximately $224.4 million
was funded. In addition, there can be no assurance that our backlog will result in actual revenues in any particular period. This is because the
actual receipt, timing and amount of revenues under contracts included in backlog are subject to various contingencies, many of which are
beyond our control. For example, the actual receipt of revenues from contracts included in backlog may never occur or may be delayed because
a program schedule could change or the program could be cancelled, or a contract could be reduced, modified or terminated early, including as a
result of a lack of appropriated funds. In addition, the fact that our backlog may translate into revenue does not guarantee that the contracts will
be profitable.

Loss of our position as a qualified contractor under one or more General Services Administration schedules, or as a prime contractor on one
or more of our contracts would impair our operating results and our ability to win new business.

In recent years, the federal government has increasingly relied on General Services Administration, or GSA, schedules and multi-award ID/IQ
contracts for its procurement needs. When using GSA schedules and multi-award ID/IQ contracts, a procuring officer chooses providers from a
pre-selected group of contractors, and contractors that are not part of the group generally will not be notified of, and will not be able to compete
for, these contracts or task orders. Accordingly, our ability to maintain our existing business and win new business depends on our ability to
maintain our position as a GSA schedule contractor and a prime contractor on multi-award ID/IQ contracts.

If we were to lose any of our GSA schedules or our prime contractor position on any of our contracts, we could lose revenues, and our ability to
win new business and our operating results could decline as a result. Similarly, unless we are successful in expanding our GSA schedule
presence and our base of multi-award ID/IQ contracts, our ability to grow our business may be hindered.

Most of our revenues are earned from contracts with limited initial terms. We may expend significant resources in connection with these
contracts that we may not recover if our customers do not exercise their contract extension options.

Our contracts typically have a one or two year initial term, with multiple options that are exercisable by our customers to extend the contract for
one or more additional years. Our customers may not exercise any of their extension options. Moreover, because we believe that our contracts
with limited initial terms represent the early portion of longer customer programs, we expend significant financial and personnel resources and
expand our operations to be able to fulfill these programs beyond the initial contract term. If a significant number of our contracts are not
extended beyond their initial terms, we may not realize anticipated revenues and our operating results may be harmed.
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The loss of one or more members of our senior management team could impair our relationships with government customers and our ability
to compete and could disrupt the management of our business.

We believe that our success depends on the continued contributions of the members of our senior management team. Our senior management
team has extensive industry experience, and the relationships and reputation that members of our senior management team have established and
maintain with government personnel contribute to our ability to maintain good customer relations and to identify new business opportunities.
The loss of the services of one or more of our senior executives could impair our ability to identify and secure new contracts, to maintain good
customer relations and to otherwise manage our business, any of which could harm our business and operating results. Currently, the Chief
Financial Officer is the only member of our senior management that has entered into an employment agreement.

If we fail to attract and retain skilled employees, we might not be able to perform under our contracts and our ability to maintain and grow
our business could be limited.

The growth of our business and revenues depends in large part upon our ability to attract and retain sufficient numbers of highly qualified
individuals who have advanced information technology skills and appropriate security clearances, and who work well with our defense and
federal civilian government customers. Competition for such personnel is intense, and recruiting, training and retention costs place significant
demands on our resources. If we are unable to recruit and retain a sufficient number of qualified employees, our ability to maintain and grow our
business could be limited. Furthermore, we could be required to engage larger numbers of contracted personnel, which could reduce our profit
margins. In addition, many of our professional personnel may have specific knowledge of and experience with our federal government
customers� operations, and we obtain some of our contracts based on that knowledge and experience. The loss of services of key personnel could
impair our ability to perform required services under some of our contracts and to retain such contracts, as well as our ability to win new
business.

We face intense competition from many competitors that have greater resources than we do, which could result in price reductions, reduced
profitability and loss of market share.

We operate in highly competitive markets and generally encounter intense competition to win contracts and task orders. For example, we must
often discount our GSA schedule rates in order to secure contracts from many of our customers in competitive situations. Many of our
competitors have greater financial, technical, marketing and public relations resources, larger customer bases and greater brand or name
recognition than we do. We expect that the number of such competitors will grow through industry consolidation and the increasing participation
in the federal government services market by traditional consulting and outsourcing providers and hardware and software manufacturers that
seek to increase their service offerings. These competitors could, among other things:

•  divert sales from us by winning very large-scale government contracts due to different or greater technical
capabilities, past performance on large-scale contracts, geographic presence, price and the availability of key
professional personnel;

•  force us to charge lower prices in order to win or maintain contracts;

•  harm our relationships with customers; and

•  seek to hire our employees.

If we lose business to our competitors or are forced to lower our prices, our revenues and our operating profits could decline and we could suffer
a loss of market share.
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In addition, we may face competition from our subcontractors who, from time to time, seek to obtain prime contractor status on contracts for
which they currently serve as a subcontractor for us. If one or more of our current subcontractors are awarded prime contractor status on such
contracts in the future, it would divert sales from us and could force us to charge lower prices in order to ensure that we retain our prime
contractor status.

We derive substantially all of our revenues from contracts awarded through competitive procurement processes, which can impose
substantial costs upon us and negatively impact our operating results.

We derive substantially all of our revenues from federal government contracts that are awarded through competitive procurement processes.
Competitive procurement imposes substantial costs and presents a number of risks to us, including:

•  the need to bid on projects in advance of knowing the complete design or full requirements, which may result in
unforeseen difficulties in executing the engagement and cost overruns;

•  the substantial cost and managerial time and effort that we spend to prepare bids and proposals for contracts that
may not be awarded to us and schedules that may not be used; and

•  the expense and delay that we may face if our competitors protest or challenge contract awards made to us
pursuant to competitive procedures, and the risk that any such protest or challenge could result in the resubmission of
offers, or in termination, reduction or modification of the awarded contract.

The costs we incur in the competitive procurement process may be substantial, and, to the extent we participate in competitive procurements and
are unable to win particular contracts, these costs could negatively affect our operating results. In addition, GSA schedule contracts, GWACs,
blanket purchase agreements and other ID/IQ contracts do not guarantee more than a minimal amount of work for us, but instead provide us
access to work generally through further competitive procedures. The increasing reliance by the federal government on GSA schedules, GWACs
and other multi-award ID/IQ contracts for its procurement needs has led to increased competition and pricing pressure, requiring that we make
sustained post-award efforts to realize revenues under these contracts.

We may lose money on some contracts if we miscalculate the resources we need to perform under the contract.

We provide services to the federal government under contracts with three basic types of price structure: cost-plus-fee, time-and-materials and
fixed-price. For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, we derived approximately 52%, 32% and 16% of revenues from cost-plus-fee,
time-and-materials and fixed-price contracts, respectively. Each of these types of contracts, to varying degrees, involves the risk that we
underestimate our cost of fulfilling the contract, and we occasionally have suffered in the past, and may suffer in the future, reduced profits or
financial losses on our contracts, thereby causing our operating results to decline as a result. This risk is greater for fixed-price contracts, where
we bear the full impact of cost overruns, and an increase of fixed-price contracts in our contract mix would increase our exposure to this risk.

Our margins and operating results may suffer if we experience unfavorable changes in the proportion of cost-plus-fee or fixed-price
contracts in our total contract mix.

Although fixed-price contracts entail a greater risk of a reduced profit or financial loss on a contract compared to other types of contracts we
enter into, fixed-price contracts typically provide higher profit opportunities because we receive the benefit of cost savings. In contrast,
cost-plus-fee contracts are subject to statutory limits on profit margins, and generally are the least profitable of our contract types. Our federal
government customers typically determine what type of contract we enter into. Cost-plus-fee and

18

Edgar Filing: Stanley, Inc. - Form 10-K

22



fixed-price contracts accounted for approximately 52% and 16%, respectively, of our revenues for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, and
approximately 62% and 18%, respectively, of our revenues for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006. To the extent that we enter into more
cost-plus-fee or less fixed-price contracts in proportion to our total contract mix in the future, our margins and operating results may suffer.

Our cash flow and profitability could be reduced if expenditures are incurred prior to the final receipt of a contract.

We provide various professional services and sometimes procure equipment and materials on behalf of our federal government customers under
various contractual arrangements. From time to time, in order to ensure that we satisfy our customers� delivery requirements and schedules, we
may elect to initiate procurement in advance of receiving final authorization from the government customer or a prime contractor. If our
government or prime contractor customers� requirements should change or if the government or the prime contractor should direct the anticipated
procurement to a contractor other than us or if the equipment or materials become obsolete or require modification before we are under contract
for the procurement, our investment in the equipment or materials might be at risk if we cannot efficiently resell them. This could reduce
anticipated earnings or result in a loss, negatively affecting our cash flow and profitability.

Failure to maintain strong relationships with other contractors could result in a decline in our revenues.

Revenues derived from contracts in which we acted as a subcontractor to other companies represented approximately 20% of our revenues for
the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. As a subcontractor, we often lack control over fulfillment of a contract, and poor performance on the
contract could tarnish our reputation, even when we perform as required. As a prime contractor, we rely on other companies to perform some of
the work under a contract. We expect to continue to depend on relationships with other contractors for portions of our delivery of services and
revenues in the foreseeable future. Our business, prospects, financial condition and operating results could be harmed if other contractors
eliminate or reduce their relationships with us, whether because they choose to establish relationships with our competitors or because they
choose to directly offer services that compete with our business, or if the government terminates or reduces other prime contractors� programs or
does not award them new contracts.

If our subcontractors fail to perform their contractual obligations, our performance and reputation as a prime contractor and our ability to
obtain future business could suffer.

As a prime contractor, we often rely significantly upon other companies as subcontractors to perform work we are obligated to perform for our
customers. We estimate that revenues derived from work performed by our subcontractors represented approximately 31% of our revenues for
fiscal 2007. If one or more of our subcontractors fail to perform satisfactorily the agreed-upon services on a timely basis, or violate government
contracting policies, laws or regulations, our ability to perform our obligations or meet our customers� expectations as a prime contractor may be
compromised. In some cases, we have limited involvement in the work performed by the subcontractors but are nevertheless responsible for the
work performed. In extreme cases, performance or other deficiencies on the part of our subcontractors could result in a customer terminating our
contract for default. A default termination could expose us to liability for the agency�s costs of reprocurement, damage our reputation and hurt
our ability to compete for future contracts and task orders.
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Unfavorable government audit results could subject us to a variety of penalties and sanctions, and could harm our reputation and
relationships with our customers.

The federal government audits and reviews our performance on contracts, pricing practices, cost structure and compliance with applicable laws,
regulations and standards. Like most large government contractors, our contracts are audited and reviewed on a continual basis by federal
agencies, including the Defense Contract Audit Agency, or the DCAA. An unfavorable audit of us, including any companies we have acquired
or may acquire, or any of our subcontractors could have a substantial adverse effect on our operating results. For example, any costs that were
previously reimbursed could subsequently be disallowed. In this case, cash we have already collected may need to be refunded and future
operating margins may be reduced.

Our incurred cost submissions have been audited by the DCAA through December 31, 2004 for Morgan and through March 31, 2004 for
Stanley, CCI, GCI and FSC. Costs for which Morgan was reimbursed after December 31, 2004 and costs for which Stanley, CCI, GCI and FSC
were reimbursed after March 31, 2004, may be subsequently disallowed upon the completion of future audits. In addition, non-audit reviews by
the U.S. government may still be conducted on all of our government contracts.

If a government audit uncovers improper or illegal activities, we may be subject to civil and criminal penalties and administrative sanctions,
including termination of contracts, forfeiture of profits, suspension of payments, fines and suspension or debarment from doing business with
government agencies. In addition, we could suffer serious harm to our reputation if allegations of impropriety were made against us, whether or
not true.

If we experience systems or services failures, our reputation could be harmed and our customers could assert claims against us for damages
or refunds.

We create, implement and maintain information technology and engineering systems, and provide services that are often critical to our
customers� operations, some of which involve classified or other sensitive information, and may be conducted in war-zones or other hazardous
environments. We have experienced and may in the future experience some systems or services failures, schedule or delivery delays, and other
problems in connection with our work. If our solutions, services, products, including third-party products we may resell to our customers, or
other applications have significant defects or errors, are subject to delivery delays or fail to meet our customers� expectations, we may:

•  lose revenues due to adverse customer reactions;

•  be required to provide additional services to customers at no charge;

•  receive negative publicity, which could damage our reputation and harm our ability to attract or retain customers;
or

•  suffer claims for substantial damages.

The successful assertion of any large claims against us could seriously harm our business. Even if not successful, these claims could result in
significant legal and other costs, may be a distraction to our management and may harm our reputation.

Security breaches in sensitive government systems could result in the loss of customers and negative publicity.

Many of the systems we develop, integrate and maintain involve managing and protecting information involved in intelligence, national security
and other sensitive or classified government functions. A security breach in one of these systems could cause serious harm to our business,
damage our reputation and prevent us from being eligible for further work on sensitive or classified systems for federal government customers.
We could incur losses from such a security breach that could exceed the policy limits under our
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professional liability insurance program. Damage to our reputation or limitations on our eligibility for additional work resulting from a security
breach in one of the systems we develop, install and maintain could materially reduce our revenues.

Our failure to obtain and maintain necessary security clearances may limit our ability to perform classified work for government customers,
which could cause us to lose business.

Some government contracts require us to maintain facility security clearances and require some of our employees to maintain individual security
clearances. Obtaining and maintaining security clearances for employees involves a lengthy process, and it is difficult to identify, recruit and
retain employees who already hold security clearances. If our employees lose or are unable to timely obtain security clearances or we lose a
facility clearance, the government customer may terminate the contract or decide not to renew it upon its expiration. As a result, to the extent we
cannot obtain or maintain the required security clearances for a particular contract, or we fail to obtain them on a timely basis, we may not derive
the revenues anticipated from the contract, which could harm our operating results. To the extent we are not able to obtain facility security
clearances or engage employees with the required security clearances for a particular contract, we will be unable to perform that contract and we
may not be able to compete for or win new awards for similar work.

Our quarterly operating results may fluctuate significantly as a result of factors outside of our control, which could cause the market price of
our common stock to decline.

Our revenues and operating results will vary from quarter to quarter and, as a result, our operating results may fall below the expectations of
securities analysts and investors, which could cause the price of our common stock to decline. Factors that may affect our operating results
include those listed in this �Risk Factors� section and others that are specific to our industry such as:

•  fluctuations in revenues earned on government contracts;

•  seasonal fluctuations in our staff utilization rates;

•  commencement, completion or termination of contracts during any particular quarter;

•  variable purchasing patterns under GSA schedule contracts, GWACs, blanket purchase agreements and other
ID/IQ contracts;

•  changes in contract requirements by our government agency customers;

•  changes in the extent to which we use subcontractors; and

•  changes in presidential administrations and senior federal government officials that affect the timing of
technology procurement.

Reductions in revenues in a particular quarter could lead to lower profitability in that quarter because a relatively large amount of our expenses
are fixed in the short-term. We may incur significant operating expenses during the start-up and early stages of large contracts and may not
receive corresponding payments in the same quarter. We may also incur additional expenses when contracts expire or are terminated or not
renewed. In addition, payments due to us from government agencies may be delayed due to billing cycles or as a result of failures of
governmental budgets to gain Congressional and administration approval in a timely manner.
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We may be harmed by intellectual property infringement claims.

Many of the services and solutions that we provide to our customers involve extensive use of software and other intellectual property. As a
result, we could become subject to claims of third parties who assert that software and other forms of intellectual property that we use in
delivering services and solutions infringe upon intellectual property rights of those third parties, and we could incur substantial costs to defend
those claims. In addition, if any of these infringement claims are ultimately successful, in addition to paying damages, we could be required to
take any of the following actions, each of which could entail significant expenses or result in a significant reduction in revenues:

•  cease selling or using services or solutions that incorporate the challenged software or technology;

•  obtain a license or additional licenses from third parties; or

•  redesign our services and solutions that rely on the challenged software or technology.

We may incur substantial costs and liabilities in connection with acquisitions.

We have completed five acquisitions since 2000 and expect to consider further acquisitions and investments in the future. If we make an
acquisition or investment, we may:

•  issue stock that would dilute your stock ownership;

•  incur debt that would restrict our cash flow;

•  assume liabilities;

•  incur large and immediate write-offs;

•  incur unanticipated costs;

•  incur unanticipated liabilities under purchase and sale agreements with target companies;

•  forego procurement opportunities as a result of organizational conflict of interest, or OCI, concerns;

•  experience risks associated with entering markets in which we have no or limited prior experience; and

•  lose key employees from the acquired operations.

In connection with any acquisition we make, there may be liabilities that we fail to discover or that we inadequately assess. In addition, acquired
operations may not perform according to the forecasts that we used to determine the purchase price. If the acquired entity fails to achieve these
forecasts, or if we are not successful in offering our services to the customer base of the acquired entity or otherwise do not achieve the
anticipated benefits of the acquisition, our financial condition and operating results may decline as a result. In addition, if we incur a substantial
amount of indebtedness in order to finance one or more acquisitions, our increased leverage may restrict our business and operations, reduce our
cash flows or restrict our future access to sufficient funding to finance desired growth.

We may not successfully integrate companies that we have acquired or may acquire in the future.

The process of integrating companies requires a significant amount of resources and management attention which detracts from attention to our
business. If we are unable to integrate the operations of Techrizon, which we acquired in April 2007, or of any company we may acquire in the
future as planned, our management�s attention may continue to be diverted from the operation of our business, our operations could be disrupted
and we may be unable to deliver our services to our customers as planned,
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any of which would hinder implementation of our business plan, harm our relationships with our customers and force us to incur unanticipated
expenses.

A preference for minority-owned, small and small disadvantaged businesses could impact our ability to be a prime contractor on certain
governmental procurements.

As a result of the Small Business Administration, or SBA, set-aside program, the federal government may decide to restrict certain procurements
only to bidders that qualify as minority-owned, small or small disadvantaged businesses. As a result, we would not be eligible to perform as a
prime contractor on those programs and would be restricted to a maximum of 49% of the work as a subcontractor on those programs. An
increase in the amount of procurements under the SBA set-aside program may impact our ability to bid on new procurements as a prime
contractor or restrict our ability to recompete on incumbent work that is placed in the set-aside program.

Our employees may engage in misconduct or other improper activities, which could harm our business.

A significant number of our employees are involved in government contracting and billing processes, which require compliance with a number
of procurement laws and regulations. In addition, in the course of our business, our employees routinely obtain access to sensitive or classified
government information. As a result, we are exposed to the risk that employee fraud or other misconduct could occur. Misconduct by employees
could include intentional or unintentional failures to comply with federal government procurement regulations, engaging in unauthorized
activities or falsifying time records. Employee misconduct could also involve the improper use of our customers� sensitive or classified
information, which could result in regulatory sanctions against us and serious harm to our reputation. It is not always possible to deter employee
misconduct, and the precautions we take to prevent and detect this activity may not be effective in controlling unknown or unmanaged risks or
losses, which could materially harm our business.

Our business commitments require our employees to travel to potentially dangerous places, which may result in injury to our employees.

Our business involves providing services that require some of our employees to operate in countries that may be experiencing political unrest,
war or terrorism, including Afghanistan and Iraq. Certain senior level employees or executives may, on occasion, be part of the teams deployed
to provide services in these countries. As a result, it is possible that certain of our employees or executives will suffer injury or bodily harm in
the course of these deployments. It is also possible that we will encounter unexpected costs in connection with additional risks inherent in
sending our employees to dangerous locations, such as increased insurance costs, as well as the repatriation of our employees or executives for
reasons beyond our control. These problems could cause our actual results to differ materially from those anticipated.

Risks Related to Our Industry

Federal government contracts contain provisions giving government customers a variety of rights that are unfavorable to us, including the
ability to terminate a contract at any time for convenience.

Federal government contracts contain provisions and are subject to laws and regulations that provide government customers with rights and
remedies not typically found in commercial contracts. These rights and remedies allow government customers, among other things, to:

•  terminate existing contracts, with short notice, for convenience, as well as for default;

•  reduce orders under or otherwise modify contracts;
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•  for contracts subject to the Truth in Negotiations Act, reduce the contract price or cost where it was increased
because a contractor or subcontractor during negotiations furnished cost or pricing data that was not complete,
accurate and current;

•  for some contracts, demand a refund, make a forward price adjustment or terminate a contract for default if a
contractor provided inaccurate or incomplete data during the contract negotiation process, or reduce the contract price
under certain triggering circumstances, including the revision of pricelists or other documents upon which the contract
award was predicated, the granting of more favorable discounts or terms and conditions than those contained in such
documents and the granting of certain special discounts to certain customers;

•  terminate our facility security clearances and thereby prevent us from receiving classified contracts;

•  cancel multi-year contracts and related orders if funds for contract performance for any subsequent year become
unavailable;

•  decline to exercise an option to renew a multi-year contract or issue task orders in connection with ID/IQ
contracts;

•  claim rights in solutions, systems and technology produced by us;

•  prohibit future procurement awards with a particular agency due to a finding of organizational conflict of interest
based upon prior related work performed for the agency that would give a contractor an unfair advantage over
competing contractors or the existence of conflicting roles that might bias a contractor�s judgment;

•  subject the award of contracts to protest by competitors, which may require the contracting federal agency or
department to suspend our performance pending the outcome of the protest and may also result in a requirement to
resubmit offers for the contract or in the termination, reduction or modification of the awarded contract; and

•  suspend or debar us from doing business with the federal government.

If a federal government customer terminates one of our contracts for convenience, we may recover only a portion of our incurred or committed
costs, settlement expenses and profit on work completed prior to the termination. If a federal government customer were to unexpectedly
terminate, cancel or decline to exercise an option to renew one or more of our significant contracts or suspend or debar us from doing business
with the federal government, our revenues and operating results would be materially harmed.

Our failure to comply with complex procurement laws and regulations could cause us to lose business and subject us to a variety of
penalties.

We must comply with laws and regulations relating to the formation, administration and performance of federal government contracts, which
affect how we do business with our federal government customers and may increase our expenses. Among the most significant laws and
regulations are:

•  the Federal Acquisition Regulation, and agency regulations analogous or supplemental to the Federal Acquisition
Regulation, which comprehensively regulate the formation, administration, and performance of government contracts,
including provisions relating to the avoidance of conflicts of interest and intra-organizational conflicts of interest;

•  the Truth in Negotiations Act, which requires certification and disclosure of all cost and pricing data in connection
with some contract negotiations;
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•  the Procurement Integrity Act, which requires evaluation of ethical conflicts surrounding procurement activity and
establishing certain employment restrictions for individuals who participate in the procurement process;

•  the Cost Accounting Standards, which impose accounting requirements that govern our right to reimbursement
under some cost-based government contracts;

•  laws, regulations and executive orders restricting the use and dissemination of information classified for national
security purposes and the exportation of specified products, technologies, and technical data; and

•  compliance with antitrust laws.

If a government review or investigation uncovers improper or illegal activities, we may be subject to civil and criminal penalties and
administrative sanctions, including the termination of our contracts, the forfeiture of profits, the suspension of payments owed to us, fines and
our suspension or debarment from doing business with federal government agencies. In particular, the civil False Claims Act provides for treble
damages and potentially substantial civil penalties where, for example, a contractor presents a false or fraudulent claim to the government for
payment or approval, or makes a false statement in order to get a false or fraudulent claim paid or approved by the government. Actions under
the civil False Claims Act may be brought by the government or by other persons on behalf of the government. These provisions of the civil
False Claims Act permit parties, such as our employees, to sue us on behalf of the government and share a portion of any recovery. Any failure
to comply with applicable laws and regulations could result in contract termination, damage to our reputation, price or fee reductions or
suspension or debarment from contracting with the government, each of which could lead to a material reduction in our revenues.

The failure by Congress to timely approve budgets for the federal agencies we contract with could delay or reduce spending and cause us to
lose revenues.

On an annual basis, Congress must approve budgets that govern spending by each of the federal agencies we contract with. When Congress is
unable to agree on budget priorities, and thus is unable to pass the annual budget on a timely basis, Congress typically enacts a continuing
resolution that allows federal government agencies to operate at spending levels approved in the previous budget cycle. Operation by
government agencies on the basis of a continuing resolution may delay or cancel funding we expect to receive from customers on work we are
already performing and is likely to result in new initiatives being delayed, and in some cases being cancelled.

The adoption of new procurement laws or regulations could reduce the amount of services that are outsourced by the federal government
and could cause us to lose future revenues.

New legislation or procurement regulations could cause federal agencies to adopt restrictive procurement practices regarding the use of outside
service providers. For example, the American Federation of Government Employees, the largest federal employee union, strongly endorses
legislation that may restrict the procedure by which services are outsourced to government contractors. If such legislation were to be enacted, it
would likely reduce the amount of information technology services that could be outsourced by the federal government, which could materially
reduce our future expected revenues.
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The Office of Management and Budget process for ensuring government agencies properly support capital planning initiatives, including
information technology investments, could reduce or delay federal information technology spending and cause us to lose revenue.

The Office of Management and Budget, or OMB, supervises spending by federal agencies and enforces the Government Performance Results
Act. This Act requires, among other things, that federal agencies make an adequate business justification to support capital planning initiatives,
including all information technology investments. The factors considered by the OMB include, among others, whether the proposed information
technology investment is expected to achieve an appropriate return on investment, whether related processes are contemporaneously reviewed,
whether interoperability with existing systems and the capacity for these systems to share data across government agencies has been considered
and whether existing commercial off-the-shelf products are being utilized to the extent possible. If our customers do not adequately justify
proposed information technology investments to the OMB, the OMB may refuse funding for their new or continuing information technology
investments, and we may lose revenue as a result.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

Our executive officers and directors as a group and our Employee Stock Ownership Plan, or ESOP, own a significant percentage of our
common stock, and as a result have significant influence over our affairs and policies.

Our executive officers and directors beneficially own approximately 29% of our outstanding common stock. For so long as our executive
officers and directors continue to own a significant portion of our outstanding common stock, they will have significant influence over matters
submitted to our stockholders for approval and exercise significant control over our business policies and affairs, including the election of
directors, amendments to our certificate of incorporation and determinations with respect to mergers and other business combinations, including
those that may result in a change of control. In addition, the ESOP beneficially owns approximately 28% of our outstanding common stock.
Substantially all of the participants in the ESOP are our employees. If these participants act together, they will also be able to exert influence
over matters submitted to our stockholders for approval, and if they act together with our executive officers and directors, they will be able to
determine the outcome of matters submitted for stockholder approval. The interests of our executive officers and directors and the ESOP
participants may conflict with your interests as a stockholder.

Provisions of our charter documents may inhibit potential acquisition bids that you and other stockholders may consider favorable, and the
market price of our common stock may be lower as a result.

Provisions of our certificate of incorporation and by-laws, as amended and restated, may deter, delay or prevent a third-party from acquiring us.
These provisions include:

•  limitations on who may call special meetings of stockholders;

•  the absence of cumulative voting in the election of directors;

•  the inability of stockholders to act by written consent;

•  advance notice requirements for nominations for election to the board of directors and for stockholder proposals;
and

•  the authority of our board of directors to issue, without stockholder approval, up to 500,000 shares of preferred
stock with such terms as the board of directors may determine and to issue additional shares of our common stock.
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These provisions could have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control of our company, discourage others from making
tender offers for our shares, lower the market price of our stock or impede the ability of our stockholders to change our management, even if
such changes would be beneficial to our stockholders.

A substantial number of shares will be eligible for sale in the near future, which could cause our common stock price to decline.

Prior to our initial public offering in October 2006, substantially all of our common stock was held by our employees, including through our
ESOP. If our existing stockholders sell, or the market perceives that our stockholders intend to sell, substantial amounts of our common stock in
the public market, the market price of our common stock could decline significantly. These sales also might make it more difficult for us to sell
equity or equity-related securities in the future at a time and price that we deem appropriate. In connection with our initial public offering, our
executive officers, directors, the selling shareholders (other than the ESOP), and certain other stockholders entered into lock-up agreements. In
accordance with these lock-up agreements, 5,306,904 shares of common stock will be available for sale in the public market 360 days after
October 17, 2006. These lock-up agreements are subject to a number of exceptions and Citigroup Global Markets Inc., on behalf of the
underwriters in the initial public offering, may release these stockholders from their lock-up agreements with the underwriters at any time and
without notice, which would allow for earlier sale of shares in the public market. As restrictions on resale end, the market price of our common
stock could drop significantly if the holders of restricted shares sell them or are perceived by the market as intending to sell them. In addition,
our ESOP holds 6,212,451 shares of our common stock, all of which was allocated to employee accounts. Under certain circumstances, such as
the termination of an employee�s employment with us, the ESOP may distribute shares to ESOP participants (or sell shares in the market),
depending on the elections of ESOP participants. In addition, pursuant to certain diversification rights that will be available to ESOP participants
pursuant to instructions given during the 90-day period which began on March 31, 2007, up to an additional 1,831,665 shares held by the ESOP
may be sold in the public market at that time.

ITEM 1B.  UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2.  PROPERTIES

We lease our office facilities and we do not own any facilities or real estate materially important to our operations. We lease approximately
49,100 square feet in Arlington, Virginia for our corporate headquarters for a term expiring December 31, 2015. We also lease facilities at
approximately 28 additional locations in 14 states and the District of Columbia. We believe our present facilities are adequate to meet our
current and projected needs. Our leases and subleases have various terms ranging from one month to ten years and annual rents ranging from
approximately $5,000 to $1.6 million. We expect to be able to renew each of our leases or to lease comparable facilities on terms commercially
acceptable to us.

ITEM 3.  LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are not currently subject to any material legal proceedings, nor, to our knowledge, is any material legal proceeding threatened against us.

ITEM 4.  SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of stockholders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007.
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PART II

ITEM 5.  MARKET FOR THE COMPANY�S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol �SXE.� We completed our initial public offering on October 18,
2006 at a price of $13 per share. Prior to such date there was no public market for our common stock.

The following table reflects, by quarter, the high and low closing prices per share of our common stock on the New York Stock Exchange. We
have never declared nor paid any cash dividends on our common stock. We currently intend to retain earnings, if any, to support our growth
strategy and do not anticipate paying cash dividends in the foreseeable future.

Quarter Ended High Low
12/31/06 $ 18.24 $ 14.95
03/31/07 $ 17.00 $ 14.15

As of May 31, 2007, there were approximately 30 registered holders of record of our common stock.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

The following information relates to all securities issued or sold by us during fiscal 2007, which were not registered under the Securities Act of
1933, or the Securites Act. No underwriters were involved in the following sales of securities. The issuance of shares to our Employee Stock
Ownership Plan, or ESOP, did not constitute sales within the meaning of the Securities Act.

1.  During the quarter ended June 30, 2006, 23 employees exercised options to purchase an aggregate of 390,660
shares of our common stock at an aggregate exercise price of $400,790.

2.  During the quarter ended September 30, 2006, one employee exercised options to purchase an aggregate of
3,900 shares of our common stock at an aggregate exercise price of $14,335.

3.  During the quarter ended December 31, 2006, three employees exercised options to purchase an aggregate of
169,800 shares of our common stock at an aggregate exercise price of $97,204.

4.  During the quarter ended June 30, 2006, we granted options to purchase an aggregate of 799,500 shares of
our common stock at a weighted average exercise price of $7.93.

5.  During the quarter ended June 30, 2006, we issued 15,000 shares of our common stock to a trust for the
benefit of one employee.

6.  During the quarter ended June 30, 2006, we issued 11,250 shares of our common stock to an employee as
compensation. These shares were valued at the time of issuance at $6.56 per share, for an aggregate value of
$73,837.50.

7.  During the quarter ended September 30, 2006, we issued to five members of our board of directors an
aggregate of 21,600 shares of our common stock as compensation for their service on our board of directors. These
shares were valued at the time of issuance at $7.86 per share, for an aggregate value of $169,834.

8.  During the quarter ended June 30, 2006, we issued and sold to one of our executive officers 30,000 shares of
our common stock at a per share price of $6.56 for an aggregate purchase price of $196,900
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PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT COMPARISON(1)

The following graph shows the total stockholder return of an investment of $100 in cash on October 18, 2006 for (i) the Company�s common
stock, (ii) the Standards & Poor�s 500 Index (the �S&P 500�) and (iii) our peer group(2). All values are calculated as of October 18,
2006 (the first day of trading of our Common Stock) through March 31, 2007.

The comparison assumes that all returns are market-cap weighted. The historical information set forth below is not necessarily indicative of
future performance.

March 31, 2007
Stanley, Inc. 100.65
Peer Group 92.80
S&P 500 104.21

(1)  The material in this report is not �soliciting material,� is not deemed �filed� with the SEC, and is not to be
incorporated by reference into any of our filings under the Securities Act or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
whether made before or after the date hereof and irrespective of any general incorporation language in any such filing.

(2)  Our peer group is composed of  NCI, Inc., ManTech International Corp., Dynamics Research Corp., MTC
Technologies Inc., CACI International Inc., SI International, Inc., ICF International, Inc., SRA International, Inc. and
SAIC, Inc.
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ITEM 6.  SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The table below presents our selected historical financial data for each of the five fiscal years in the period ended March 31, 2007. We derived
the statement of income data for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2005, 2006, and 2007 and the balance sheet data as of March 31, 2006 and
2007 from our audited consolidated financial statements included in this Form 10-K. We derived the statement of income data for the fiscal
years ended March 31, 2003 and 2004 and the balance sheet data as of  March 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 from our audited consolidated financials
for those years, which are not included in this Form 10-K.

You should read the selected financial data presented below in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements, the notes to the
consolidated financial statements and with �Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations� included
elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

Year Ended March 31,
(in thousands, except per share amounts)
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Statement of income data:
Revenues $ 143,488 $ 178,741 $ 282,456 $ 284,801 $ 409,411
Operating costs and expenses:
Cost of revenues 122,861 151,197 243,677 241,357 343,628
Selling, general and administrative 10,422 13,206 16,844 19,709 30,700
Amortization of deferred compensation 236 224 372 790 5,082
Depreciation and amortization 979 1,349 2,327 3,057 5,424
Impairment of intangible assets � � � 3,590 �
Operating income 8,990 12,765 19,236 16,298 24,577
Other income (expense):
Other income (expense) � 8 2 101 (478 )
Interest expense, net (117 ) (261 ) (822 ) (2,441 ) (5,918 )
Income before taxes 8,873 12,512 18,416 13,958 18,181
Provision for income taxes (3,437 ) (4,378 ) (7,184 ) (5,708 ) (7,476 )
Net income $ 5,436 $ 8,134 $ 11,232 $ 8,250 $ 10,705
Earnings per share(1):
Basic $ 0.36 $ 0.56 $ 0.78 $ 0.58 $ 0.61
Diluted $ 0.34 $ 0.50 $ 0.70 $ 0.51 $ 0.55
Weighted average shares(1):
Basic 14,937 14,653 14,446 14,202 17,567
Diluted 16,107 16,107 16,117 16,096 19,458
Balance sheet data (at period end):
Cash and cash equivalents(2) $ � $ � $ � $ � $ 12,736
Working capital 10,006 4,411 13,085 29,299 60,919
Total assets 49,677 86,848 93,558 199,903 237,975
Total long-term liabilities 2,684 10,517 9,367 102,885 40,346
Stockholders� equity 17,796 25,094 34,567 42,389 134,152

(1)  Earnings per share and weighted average shares are calculated after giving effect to the thirty-for-one stock
split effected on September 12, 2006.

(2)  We historically have not maintained a cash balance, but have applied all of our operating cash flow to reduce
indebtedness under outstanding lines of credit.
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ITEM 7.  MANAGEMENT�S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes
included in this Form 10-K. This discussion contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results may
differ materially from those discussed in or implied by any of the forward-looking statements as a result of various factors, including but not
limited to those listed in �Risk Factors� and elsewhere in this Form 10-K and those listed in other documents we have filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission.

Overview

We provide information technology services and solutions to U.S. defense and federal civilian government agencies. We offer our customers
solutions and expertise to support their mission-essential needs at any stage of program, product development or business lifecycle through five
service areas: systems engineering, enterprise integration, operational logistics, business process outsourcing and advanced engineering and
technology. As a systems integrator, we apply these five service areas to enable our customers to achieve interoperability between different
business processes and information technology systems.

Contracts funded by federal government agencies account for substantially all of our revenues. As of March 31, 2007, we had more than 200
active contractual engagements across 40 federal government agencies. Our customers include the Department of Defense (including all major
agencies within the Department of Defense), the Department of State, the Department of Homeland Security, the Department of Transportation,
the Department of the Treasury, NASA, the Department of Justice, and the Department of Health and Human Services.

Key Metrics Evaluated By Management

We manage and assess the performance of our business by evaluating a variety of financial and non-financial metrics derived from and in
addition to our United States generally accepted accounting principles, or GAAP, results. The most significant of these metrics are discussed
below.

Revenue Growth

We closely monitor revenue growth in order to assess the performance of our business. In monitoring our revenue growth, we focus on both
internal revenue growth and revenue growth through acquisitions. Our internal revenue growth is driven primarily by two factors. First, internal
revenue growth is driven by adding new customers and by obtaining new task orders and contracts with our existing customers. For example,
over the past several years we have added the Department of the Treasury�s Office of the Comptroller of the Currency, the National Guard
Bureau, the Department of Transportation and agencies in the intelligence community as new customers. Second, organic revenue growth is
driven by increasing revenues under existing contracts and task orders with customers. For example, since the initial award of our contract with
the Department of State for the provision of passport processing and support services, the scope of services provided by us, and the revenues
generated by those services, have grown significantly.

Our revenue growth strategy also includes the pursuit of strategic acquisitions. We have completed the following five acquisitions since 2000:
our acquisition of GCI in January 2000, our acquisition of CCI in September 2002, our acquisition of FSC in December 2003, our acquisition of
Morgan in February 2006, and most recently our acquisition of Techrizon in April 2007, which will be included in fiscal 2008 results.
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Backlog

We monitor backlog, which provides us with visibility of our future revenues, as a measure of the strength of our target markets and our ability
to retain existing contracts and win new contracts. The following table summarizes our backlog as of the dates indicated:

As of March 31,
2005 2006 2007
(in millions)

Backlog:
Funded $ 124.1 $ 160.9 $ 224.4
Unfunded 395.6 684.4 750.4
Total Backlog $ 519.7 $ 845.3 $ 974.8

Each year, a significant portion of our revenues is derived from our backlog, and a significant portion of our backlog represents work related to
the continuation of services and solutions under contracts or projects where we are the incumbent provider.

We define backlog as the amount of revenues we expect to realize (i) over the remaining base contract performance period and (ii) from the
exercise by the customer of option periods that we reasonably believe will be exercised, in each case from signed contracts in existence as of the
measurement date. We do not include contract ceiling values, which represent the maximum amount of contract awards that could be awarded to
all contractors under GWAC or ID/IQ contracts, in our backlog calculation.

We also do not include in backlog (i) the expected amount of revenues that would be realized if, and when, we were successful in the re-compete
of signed contracts in existence as of the measurement date or (ii) the expected amount of revenues that would be realized from future
unidentified growth on signed contracts and task orders in existence as of the measurement date.

We define funded backlog as the portion of our backlog for which funding currently is appropriated and obligated to us under a signed contract
or task order by the purchasing agency, or otherwise authorized for payment to us by a customer upon completion of a specified portion of work,
less the amount of revenue we have previously recognized under the contract. Our funded backlog does not include the full potential value of our
contracts, because Congress often appropriates funds to be used by an agency for a particular program or contract on a yearly or quarterly basis,
even though the contract may call for performance over a number of years. As a result, contracts typically are only partially funded at any point
during their term, and all or some of the work to be performed under the contracts may remain unfunded unless and until Congress makes
subsequent appropriations and the procuring agency allocates funding to the contract.
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Contract Mix

We work with the federal government under contracts employing one of three types of price structures: cost-plus-fee, time-and-materials and
fixed-price. Cost-plus-fee contracts are typically lower risk arrangements and thus yield lower profit margins than time-and-materials and
fixed-price arrangements. Because the customer usually specifies the type of contract for a particular contractual engagement, we generally do
not influence the choice of contract type. However, where we do have the opportunity to influence the contract type, and where customer
requirements are clear, we prefer time-and-materials and fixed-price arrangements rather than cost-plus-fee arrangements because
time-and-materials and fixed-price contracts, as compared with cost-plus-fee contracts, generally provide greater opportunity for the customer to
save money and for us to generate higher margins. The following table summarizes our historical contract mix, measured as a percentage of total
revenues, for the periods indicated:

Year Ended March 31,
2005 2006 2007

Cost-plus-fee 60% 62% 52%
Time-and-materials 11% 20% 32%
Fixed-price 29% 18% 16%

Headcount and Labor Utilization

We generate revenues primarily from services provided by our employees and subcontractors, with services provided by our employees
generally yielding higher profits than services provided by our subcontractors. Our ability to hire and deploy additional qualified employees is a
key driver of our ability to generate additional revenues, and our successful deployment of existing employees on direct-billable jobs is a key
driver of our profitability.

Indirect Costs

Indirect costs constitute a substantial portion of the costs associated with our performance of contracts for customers. We carefully monitor the
amount by which our actual indirect costs under our contracts vary from those expected to be incurred, which we refer to as indirect rate
variance. Increased indirect rate variance can adversely affect our ability to achieve attractive contract pricing, our profitability and our
competitive position, by resulting in unexpected increased costs to our customers.

Days Sales Outstanding

Days sales outstanding, or DSO, is a measure of how efficiently we manage the billing and collection of our accounts receivable, our most
significant working capital requirement. For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, we reported DSO of 78 days, a slight decrease from 79 days
we reported for fiscal 2006, based on the average accounts receivable balance from the beginning of the year and at the end of each of the four
quarters.

Unbilled Receivables

Unbilled receivables are comprised of work-in-process that will be billed in accordance with contract terms and delivery schedules, as well as
amounts billable upon final execution of contracts, contract completion, milestones or completion of rate negotiations. Because the billing of
unbilled receivables is contingent on those events, changes in the relative amount of unbilled receivables have an impact on our working capital
and liquidity.
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Payments to us for performance on certain of our federal government contracts are subject to audit by the DCAA and are subject to government
funding. We provide a reserve against our receivables for estimated losses that may result from rate negotiations, audit adjustments and/or
government funding availability. To the extent that actual adjustments due to rate negotiations, audit adjustments or government funding
availability differ from our estimates, our revenue may be impacted. Due to the fact that substantially all of our receivables come from contracts
funded by the federal government, the likelihood of a material loss on an uncollectible account from this activity is low.

Critical Accounting Policies

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based on our consolidated financial statements, which have
been prepared in accordance with GAAP. The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect reported amounts, and actual results may differ from the estimates. Our significant accounting policies are described
in Note 1 to our consolidated financial statements included in this filing. We consider the following accounting policies to be critical to the
understanding of our financial condition and results of operations because these policies require the most difficult, subjective or complex
judgments on the part of our management in their application, often as a result of the need to make estimates about the effect of matters that are
inherently uncertain, and are the most important to our financial condition and operating results.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue under our contracts when a contract has been executed, the contract price is fixed and determinable, delivery of services
or products has occurred and collectibility is considered probable and can be reasonably estimated. We use a standard management process to
determine whether all required criteria for revenue recognition have been met, which includes regular reviews of our contract performance. This
review covers, among other matters, progress against a schedule, outstanding action items, effort and staffing, quality, risks and issues,
subcontract management, costs incurred, commitments and satisfaction. During this review, we determine whether the overall progress on a
contract is consistent with the effort expended.

Contract revenue recognition inherently involves the use of estimates. Examples of estimates include the contemplated level of effort to
accomplish the tasks under contract, the cost of the effort and an ongoing assessment of our progress toward completing the contract. From time
to time, as part of our standard management process, facts develop that require us to revise our estimated total costs and revenues. To the extent
that a revised estimate affects contract profit or revenue previously recognized, we record the cumulative effect of the revision in the period in
which the facts requiring the revision become known. The full amount of an anticipated loss on any type of contract is recognized in the period
in which it becomes probable and can be reasonably estimated.

Under cost-plus-fee contracts, revenues are recognized as costs are incurred and include an estimate of applicable fees earned. We consider fixed
fees under cost-plus-fee contracts to be earned in proportion to the allowable costs actually incurred in performance of the contract for level of
effort contracts. For completion type cost-plus-fee contracts, fixed fees are earned in proportion to the percentage of work completed. For
time-and-materials contracts, revenues are computed by multiplying the number of direct labor-hours expended in performance of the contract
by the contractual billing rates and adding other billable direct and indirect costs. For fixed-price contracts, revenues are recognized as services
are performed, using the percentage-of-completion method, applying the cost-to-cost or units of delivery method, in accordance with Accounting
Research Bulletin No. 45 and American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) Statement of Position 81-1 �Accounting for
Performance of Construction-Type and Certain Production-Type Contracts� (SOP 81-1).
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For cost-plus-award fee type contracts, we recognize the expected fee to be awarded by the customer at the time such fee can be reasonably
estimated, based on factors such as prior award experience and communication with the customer regarding performance, including any interim
performance evaluations rendered by the customer. For cost-plus-incentive fee type contracts, the method of calculating incentive fee is
specified in the contract and it is typically based on measuring actual costs to perform the contract against a target cost to perform the contract.
We prepare periodic estimates to complete and adjust the incentive fee as required based on the contract incentive fee formula.

Our contracts with agencies of the government are subject to periodic funding by the respective contracting agency. Funding for a contract may
be provided in full at inception of the contract or ratably throughout the contract as the services are provided. From time to time, we may
proceed with work based on customer direction prior to the completion and signing of formal contract documents. Such situations require
completion of a formal internal review process and management approval prior to commencement of work. Additionally, revenue associated
with such work is recognized without profit and only when it can be reliably estimated and realization is probable. We base our estimates on
notices to proceed from our customers, previous experience with customers, communications with customers regarding funding status, and our
knowledge of available funding for the contract or program. Pre-contract costs related to unsuccessful contract bids are expensed in the period in
which we are notified that the contract will not be issued.

Disputes occasionally arise in the normal course of our business due to events such as delays, changes in contract specifications, and questions
of cost allowability or collectibility. Such matters, whether claims or unapproved change orders in the process of negotiation, are recorded at the
lesser of their estimated net realizable value or actual costs incurred, and only when the realization is probable and can be reliably estimated.
Claims against us are recognized where a loss is considered probable and can be reasonably estimated in amount.

Contract Cost Accounting

As a contractor providing services primarily to the federal government, we must categorize our costs as either direct or indirect and allowable or
unallowable. Direct costs are those costs that are identified with specific contracts. These costs include labor, subcontractor and consultant
services, third party materials we purchase under a contract and other non-labor costs incurred in support of a contract. Indirect costs are those
costs not identified with specific contracts. Rather, indirect costs are allocated to contracts in accordance with federal government rules and
regulations. These costs typically include certain of our selling, general and administrative expenses, fringe benefit expenses and depreciation
and amortization costs. Direct and indirect costs that are not allowable under the Federal Acquisition Regulation or specific contract provisions
cannot be considered for reimbursement under our federal government contracts. We must specifically identify these costs to ensure we comply
with these requirements. Our unallowable costs include a portion of our executive compensation, certain employee morale activities, certain
types of legal and consulting costs and the amortization of identified intangible assets, among others. A key element to our historical success has
been our ability to manage indirect cost growth and unallowable costs in connection with integration of acquired businesses.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over the fair value of net tangible and identifiable intangible assets of acquired companies. In accordance
with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or SFAS, No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, or SFAS No. 142, we do not
amortize goodwill. Rather, we test goodwill for impairment at least on an annual basis. Testing for impairment is a two-step process as
prescribed by SFAS No. 142. The first step is a test for potential impairment, while the second step measures the amount of impairment, if any.
Under the guidelines of SFAS No. 142, we are required to
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perform an impairment test at least on an annual basis at any time during the fiscal year, provided that the test is performed at the same time
every year. An impairment loss would be recognized when the assets� fair value is below their carrying value. Based on the testing performed as
of December 31, 2006, the Company determined that no impairments existed as of December 31, 2006. In the quarter ended March 31, 2006, we
recorded an aggregate charge of $3.6 million relating to the impairment of the CCI and FSC trade names. The impairment arose as a result of our
completion of substantially all of the activities in connection with novating the contracts previously legally held by CCI and FSC. As such, we
no longer ascribe any value to the CCI and FSC trade names and that portion of the identified intangibles was written-off as impairment of
intangible assets in the year ended March 31, 2006. Customer relationships, noncompete agreements and backlog and contracts are amortized on
a straight-line basis over periods ranging from one to seven years.

Results of Operations

Our historical financial statements reflect the operating results of our acquisitions from the date of acquisition. The following tables set forth the
results of operations expressed in dollars (in thousands) and as a percentage of revenues, for the periods below:

Year Ended March 31,
2005 2006 2007

Consolidated Statement of Income Data
Revenues $ 282,456 $ 284,801 $ 409,411
Operating costs and expenses:
Cost of revenues 243,677 241,357 343,628
Selling, general and administrative 16,844 19,709 30,700
Amortization of deferred compensation 372 790 5,082
Depreciation and amortization 2,327 3,057 5,424
Impairment of intangible assets � 3,590 �
Total operating costs and expenses 263,220 268,503 384,834
Operating income 19,236 16,298 24,577
Other income (expense):
Other income (expense) 2 101 (478 )
Interest expense�net (822 ) (2,441 ) (5,918 )
Total other expenses (820 ) (2,340 ) (6,396 )
Income before taxes 18,416 13,958 18,181
Provision for income taxes (7,184 ) (5,708 ) (7,476 )
Net income $ 11,232 $ 8,250 $ 10,705
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Year Ended March 31,
2005 2006 2007

As a Percentage of Revenues
Revenues 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %
Operating costs and expenses:
Cost of revenues 86.3 84.7 83.9
Selling, general and administrative 5.9 6.9 7.5
Amortization of deferred compensation 0.1 0.3 1.3
Depreciation and amortization 0.9 1.1 1.3
Impairment of intangible assets � 1.3 �
Total operating costs and expenses 93.2 94.3 94.0
Operating income 6.8 5.7 6.0
Other income (expense):
Other income (expense) 0.0 0.0 (0.1 )
Interest expense�net (0.3 ) (0.8 ) (1.5 )
Total other expenses (0.3 ) (0.8 ) (1.6 )
Income before taxes 6.5 4.9 4.4
Provision for income taxes (2.5 ) (2.0 ) (1.8 )
Net income 4.0 % 2.9 % 2.6 %

We generate revenues primarily from services provided by our employees and subcontractors, with services provided by our employees
generally yielding higher profits than services provided by our subcontractors. To a lesser degree, we earn revenues through reimbursable travel
and other reimbursable direct and indirect costs to support the contractual effort and third-party hardware and software that we purchase and
integrate for customers as part of the solutions we provide.

Our most significant expense is cost of revenues, which includes the costs of direct labor, subcontractors, materials, equipment, travel and an
allocation of indirect costs (other than selling, general and administrative expenses and depreciation). Indirect costs consist primarily of fringe
benefits, applicable facility and information technology infrastructure costs, business insurance, recruiting, training, other overhead and certain
other non-direct costs that are necessary to support direct labor. The number and types of personnel, their salaries and other costs, can have a
significant impact on our cost of revenues.

Our selling, general and administrative expenses include costs not directly associated with performing work for our customers. These costs
include wages plus associated fringe benefits, stock-based compensation charges, rent, travel and insurance. Among the functions covered by
these expenses are sales, business development, contracts, purchasing, legal, finance, accounting, human resources and benefits, information
technology support and general management. Most of these costs are allowable costs under the cost accounting standards for contracting with
the federal government and are recoverable under cost-plus-fee contracts.

Our depreciation and amortization expenses include the amortization of purchased intangibles in connection with acquisitions and the
amortization of leasehold improvements and the depreciation of property and equipment purchased in the ordinary course of our business.

Our amortization of deferred compensation includes stock-based compensation amortized over the vesting period of the awards.

Certain revenues and payments we receive are based on provisional billings and payments that are subject to adjustment after audit. Federal
government agencies have the right to challenge our cost estimates and allocation methodologies with respect to government contracts. In
addition, contracts with these agencies are subject to audit and possible adjustment to give effect to unallowable costs under cost-
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plus-fee contracts or to other regulatory requirements affecting both cost-plus-fee and fixed-price contracts.

Comparison of Results of Operations for the Fiscal Years Ended March 31,  2006 and 2007

Revenues.  Our consolidated revenues increased $124.6 million, or 43.8% from $284.8 million for the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2006, to $409.4 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. Increased revenues of $78.6 million were
attributable to Morgan related contracts that include specialized engineering and technology services provided to the
U.S. Army Aviation and Missile Command, or AMCOM, and the U.S. Army Program Executive Officer for
Simulation, Training, and Instrumentation, or PEO STRI. Increased revenues of $46 million were related to continued
growth providing enterprise integration and operational support services for the Department of Defense, expanding
demand for passport services for the Department of State�s Bureau of Consular Affairs, including the completion of the
Arkansas Passport Center, and ongoing logistics support for the Army�s equipment reset effort in the United States and
abroad.

Cost of Revenues.  Our cost of revenues increased $102.2 million, or 42.4%, from $241.4 million for the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2006, to $343.6 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. This increase was primarily the
result of additional costs attributable to revenues generated by Morgan operations, in addition to the cost of revenues
associated with the increased services provided under the contracts referred to above.

Selling, General and Administrative.  Our selling, general and administrative expense increased $11.0 million, or 55.8%,
from $19.7 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006, to $30.7 million for the fiscal year ended March 31,
2007. This was due to increased selling, general and administrative expenses attributable to Morgan operations and
overall company growth, increases in business development costs associated with several significant procurements,
higher recruiting costs to expand our highly trained and specialized technical workforce, and additional costs
associated with being a public company, including costs associated with legal, audit, tax, and Sarbanes-Oxley Act, or
SOX, compliance services.

Amortization of Deferred Compensation.  Our amortization of deferred compensation increased $4.3 million, or 543.4%,
from $0.8 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006, to $5.1 million for fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. The
increase was primarily attributable to the amortization expense related to the acceleration of the vesting period of
restricted stock grants in connection to our initial public offering in October 2006.

Depreciation and Amortization.  Our depreciation and amortization expense increased $2.3 million, or 77.4%, from $3.1
million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006, to $5.4 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007.
Approximately $1.7 million of the increase was related to the amortization of intangible assets primarily associated
with the Morgan acquisition. The remainder of the increase was associated with depreciation of Morgan assets and
increased capital expenditures and leasehold improvements during fiscal 2007.

Impairment of Intangible Assets.  An impairment charge of $3.6 million related to the CCI and FSC tradenames was
recorded for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 and none was recorded for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007.

Other Income or Expense.  Our other income was $0.1 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 which was
primarily related to favorable changes in market value of our interest rate swap agreements. Our other expense was
$0.5 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 which was primarily related to changes in market value and
cancellation of our interest rate swap agreements.
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Interest Expense, Net.  Our net interest expense increased $3.5 million from $2.4 million for the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2006, to $5.9 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. The increase in net interest expense was
due to the term loan borrowings incurred to finance the acquisition of Morgan.

Net Income.  Our net income increased $2.4 million or 29.8%, from $8.3 million for the fiscal year ended March 31,
2006, to $10.7 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. The increase in net income was attributable to
increased profits from internal revenue growth and from profits related to the Morgan operations.

Comparison of Results of Operations for the Fiscal Years Ended March 31, 2005 and 2006

Revenues.  Our consolidated revenues increased $2.3 million, or 0.8%, from $282.5 million for the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2005, to $284.8 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006. The increase was primarily due to $9.6
million in increased revenues attributable to a partial year of results after the acquisition of Morgan, $10.7 million of
increased revenue under our passport services contract, $3.0 million of increased revenues under a new contract with
Department of Army AWRDS contract, $6.7 million of increased revenues under a new contract with the Department
of Transportation Maritime Administration, which was partially offset by $37.4 million of pass through revenues
generated in fiscal 2005.

Cost of Revenues.  Our cost of revenues decreased $2.3 million, or 1.0%, from $243.7 million for the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2005, to $241.4 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006. This decrease was primarily the result of
a $35.0 million reduction in cost of revenues attributable to the decrease in pass-through revenues generated in fiscal
2006, partially offset by the cost of revenues associated with the increased services provided under the contracts
above.

Selling, General and Administrative.  Our selling, general and administrative expense increased $2.9 million, or 17.0%,
from $16.8 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005, to $19.7 million for the fiscal year ended March 31,
2006. The largest component of this increase were a $1.8 million increase in finance, accounting and human resources
costs and $0.3 million of cost associated with Morgan�s operations since the date of acquisition.

Amortization of Deferred Compensation.  Our amortization of deferred compensation increased $0.4 million, or 112.1%,
from $0.4 million for the fiscal year ended 2005, to $0.8 million for fiscal year ended 2006. The increase was
primarily attributable to the amortization of restricted stock grants awarded in May 2005.

Depreciation and Amortization.  Our depreciation and amortization expense increased $0.8 million, or 31.4%, from $2.3
million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005, to $3.1 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006.
Approximately $0.2 million of the increase was due to amortization of purchased intangibles associated with the
Morgan acquisition and the remainder of the increase was related to depreciation expense associated with increased
capital expenditures during fiscal 2006.

Impairment of Intangible Assets.  In fiscal 2006, we recorded an impairment charge of $3.6 million related to the CCI and
FSC tradenames.

Other Income or Expense.  Our other income was $0.1 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006. This was
primarily related to favorable changes in market value of our interest rate swap agreements

Interest Expense, Net.  Our net interest expense increased $1.6 million, or 197.0%, from $0.8 million for the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2005, to $2.4 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006. The increase in net interest expense
was due to the new term loan borrowings incurred to finance the acquisition of Morgan, increased borrowing under
our revolving credit facility primarily to fund stock repurchases from our ESOP and a higher interest rate
environment.
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Net Income.  Our net income decreased $2.9 million from $11.2 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005, to
$8.3 million for fiscal year ended March 31, 2006. The primary reason for the decline in net income was a $3.6
million impairment charge related to CCI and FSC trade names.

Seasonality

Our revenues and operating income have typically been positively affected in the quarter ending March 31 due to an increase in the volume of
revenues generated under our contract with the Department of State for the provision of passport services, as the demand for processing and
delivery of U.S. passports typically increases during this quarter.

Inflation

We do not believe that inflation has had a material effect on our business for the three years ended March 31, 2007.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary liquidity needs are to finance the costs of operations pending the billing and collection of accounts receivable, to service our debt,
to make capital expenditures and to make selective strategic acquisitions. Based upon our current operations, we expect that our cash flow from
operations, together with amounts we are able to borrow under our senior credit facility, will be adequate to meet our anticipated needs for the
foreseeable future. In addition, we expect that our cash flow from operations will be adequate to meet all contractual obligations under the credit
facility and our operating leases. Although we have no specific plans to do so, to the extent we decide to pursue one or more significant strategic
acquisitions, we will likely need to incur additional debt or sell additional equity to finance these acquisitions.

Cash Flow

Accounts receivable represents our largest working capital requirement. We bill most of our customers monthly after services are rendered. Our
operating cash flow is primarily affected by the overall profitability of our contracts, our ability to invoice and collect from our customers in a
timely manner, and our ability to manage our vendor payments.

Year Ended March 31,
2005 2006 2007
(in millions)

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 3.5 $ 10.2 $ 16.0
Net cash (used in) investing activities $ (1.0 ) $ (86.6 ) $ (4.3 )
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities $ (2.5 ) $ 76.4 $ 1.0

Net cash provided by operating activities of $16.0 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 primarily reflected our net income plus
depreciation and amortization expenses and amortization of deferred compensation for that period, partially offset by a $28.3 million increase in
accounts receivable, a $7.3 million increase in accounts payable and a $9.1 million increase in accrued expenses. Net cash provided by operating
activities of $10.2 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 primarily reflected net income for that period, excluding the effects of
non-cash depreciation and amortization expense and impairment of assets of $3.1 and $3.6 million, respectively, and an increase of $8.0 million
in accrued expenses, partially offset by a $8.3 million increase in accounts receivable and a $3.4 million decrease in accounts payable. Net cash
provided by operating activities of $3.5 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005 primarily reflected our net income and an increase of
$2.2 million in accrued
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expenses, partially offset by an increase in working capital requirements caused by a $10.3 million increase in accounts receivable and a $6.1
million decrease in accounts payable.

Net cash used in investing activities of $4.3 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, consisted primarily of the purchase of equipment
in the ordinary course of business. Net cash used in investing activities of $86.6 million in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006, consisted of a
$80.6 million to complete the acquisition of Morgan, a $0.6 million earnout payment in connection with our acquisition of CCI and $5.5 million
to purchase equipment in the ordinary course of business and leasehold improvements and investments in technology related to our new
headquarters facility. Net cash used in investing activities of $1.0 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005 consisted of the purchase of
equipment in the ordinary course of business.

Net cash provided by financing activities of $1.0 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 primarily consisted of $71.8 million in net
proceeds from the sale of stock in our initial public offering and $2.0 million in proceeds received from the exercise of stock options, partially
offset by $10.4 million of net repayments of our line of credit and $62.3 million of repayments on our long-term debt. Net cash provided by
financing activities of $76.4 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 primarily consisted of $100.0 million of borrowings under our
credit facility to finance the acquisition of Morgan, partially offset by $10.8 million used to repay our line of credit, $8.8 million used to repay a
long-term note and $4.5 million to repurchase stock, primarily from our ESOP. Net cash used in financing activities of $2.5 million for the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2005, consisted of $4.5 million used to repurchase stock, primarily from our ESOP, partially offset by $1.9 million of net
borrowings under our line of credit in connection with working capital requirements.

Credit Facility and Borrowing Capacity

On February 16, 2006, in order to finance our acquisition of Morgan and to refinance our then-outstanding indebtedness, we entered into a new
senior credit facility that included a $50.0 million revolving credit facility and $100.0 million term loan. As of March 31, 2007, we had $37.8
million of term loan indebtedness outstanding under our senior credit facility. As of March 31, 2007, our borrowing availability under the
revolving portion of our senior credit facility was $49.9 million (including outstanding letters of credit). The obligations under our senior credit
facility are unconditionally guaranteed by each of our existing and subsequently acquired or organized subsidiaries and secured on a
first-priority basis by security interests (subject to permitted liens) in substantially all assets owned by us and each of our subsidiaries, including
the shares of capital stock of our subsidiaries, subject to certain exceptions.

Under the terms of the credit facility, we are entitled to request an increase in the size of the credit facility by an amount not greater than $75
million in the aggregate. If any lender elects not to increase its commitment under the credit facility, we may designate another bank or other
financial institution to become a party to the credit facility.

The credit agreement also contains a number of affirmative and restrictive covenants, including limitations on mergers, consolidations and
dissolutions; sales of assets; investments and acquisitions; indebtedness and liens; repurchases of shares of capital stock and options to purchase
shares of capital stock; transactions with affiliates; sale and leaseback transactions; and restricted payments.

In addition, the credit agreement provides that we are required to meet the following financial covenants:

•  a fixed charge coverage ratio as of the end of any fiscal quarter of not less than 1.50 to 1.00, based upon the ratio
of (i) consolidated EBITDA (as defined in the credit agreement) less the actual amount paid by us and our subsidiaries
in cash on account of capital expenditures and taxes over the period consisting of the four consecutive fiscal quarters
ending on or immediately prior to the
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determination date to (ii) consolidated interest expense for such period, scheduled principal payments required to be made on consolidated total
debt during such period and certain restricted payments paid during such period;

•  a maximum leverage ratio based upon the ratio of (i) consolidated total debt to (ii) consolidated EBITDA (as
defined in the credit agreement), which required us to maintain a ratio of 4.25 to 1.00 for each fiscal quarter ending on
or prior to December 31, 2006, and will require us to maintain a ratio of 3.50 to 1.00 for each fiscal quarter ending
after December 31, 2006 and on or prior to December 31, 2007, and a ratio of 3.00 to 1.00 for each fiscal quarter
ending after December 31, 2007; and

•  a minimum consolidated net worth equal to the sum of (i) 85% of our consolidated net worth as at December 31,
2005, (ii) 50% of consolidated net income (as defined in the credit agreement) on a cumulative basis for all preceding
fiscal quarters, commencing with the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2006, and (iii) 100% of the amount by which our
total stockholders� equity is increased as result of any public or private offering of our common stock after the closing
date of our credit agreement.

As of March 31, 2007, we were in compliance with all covenants under the credit facility.

Capital Expenditures

We have relatively low capital expenditure requirements. Our capital expenditures were $1.0 million, $5.5 million and $3.9 million for the fiscal
2005, fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2007, respectively. Substantially all of the expenditures in fiscal 2006 consisted of leasehold improvements and
purchases of office equipment due to investments made in connection with our relocation to a new headquarters facility in fiscal 2006.

Contractual Obligations and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The future scheduled contractual payments at March 31, 2007 are as follows:

Payments Due by Period

Contractual Obligations Total
Less than
1 year

1-3
years

4-5
years

More than
5 years

(in thousands)
Long-term debt obligations $ 37,750 $ 1,000 $ 2,000 $ 34,750 $ �
Long-term interest payments(1) 12,455 3,026 6,035 3,394 �
Capital lease obligations 386 150 236 � �
Operating lease obligations(2) 35,756 7,382 11,937 7,180 9,257
Total $ 86,347 $ 11,558 $ 20,208 $ 45,324 $ 9,257

(1)  Interest estimated at rates prevalent on March 31, 2007.

(2)  Leases for facilities and equipment.

We do not have any significant off-balance sheet arrangements as defined in Item 303(a)(4)(ii) of Securities and Exchange Commission
Regulation S-K as of March 31, 2007.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the FASB issued Financial Interpretation No. 48 (FIN 48), Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes�an interpretation of
FASB Statement No. 109. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise�s financial statements. The
interpretation prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax
position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The Company is required to adopt FIN 48
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beginning fiscal year 2008 and the impact that the adoption of FIN 48 will have on our financial statements and notes thereto is currently being
evaluated.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157 (SFAS 157), Fair Value Measurements. SFAS 157
provides guidance for measuring the fair value of assets and liabilities. It requires additional disclosures related to the extent to which companies
measure assets and liabilities at fair value, the information used to measure fair value, and the effect of fair value measurements on earnings.
SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. We are in the process of determining what effect, if any, the adoption
of SFAS 157 will have on our financial position or results of operations.

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 159 (SFAS 159),The Fair Value Option for Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities�Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115. SFAS 159 permits entities to measure many financial
instruments and certain other items at fair value to improve financial reporting by providing entities with the opportunity to mitigate volatility in
reported earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differently without having to apply complex hedge accounting. Most of the
provisions in SFAS 159 are elective. This statement will be effective for us is fiscal 2009, and may be applied prospectively. Early adoption is
permitted provided we also elect to apply the provisions of SFAS 157. We are in the process of determining what effect, if any, the application
of the provisions of SFAS 159 will have on our financial position and results of operations.

ITEM 7A.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCUSSION ABOUT MARKET RISK

Our principal exposure to market risk relates to changes in interest rates. From time to time, we enter into interest rate swap agreements to
effectively limit exposure to interest rate movements within the parameters of our interest rate hedging policy. As of March 31, 2007, all of the
outstanding debt under our credit facility was subject to floating interest rate risk. In October 2006, we entered into an interest rate swap
agreement covering $19.0 million of our term indebtedness under which the swap and term debt maturities match. Even after giving effect to this
agreement, we are exposed to risks due to fluctuations in the market value of this agreement and changes in interest rates with respect to the
portion of our credit facility that is not covered by this agreement. A hypothetical change in the interest rate of 1% would have changed annual
cash interest expense by $0.2 million.

ITEM 8.  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The consolidated financial statements of Stanley, Inc. are included on pages F-1 through F-22 of this report.

ITEM 9.  CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Not applicable.

ITEM 9A.  CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

As of March 31, 2007, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our chief executive officer and our chief
financial officer, we have evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to
Rule 13a-15 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Based on this evaluation, our chief executive officer and our chief financial officer have
concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective.

43

Edgar Filing: Stanley, Inc. - Form 10-K

54



There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended March 31, 2007 that have materially affected, or
are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B.  OTHER INFORMATION

Not applicable.
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PART III

We will file a definitive Proxy Statement for our 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the �2007 Proxy Statement�) with the SEC, pursuant to
Regulation 14A, not later than 120 days after the end of our fiscal year. Accordingly, certain information required by Part III has been omitted
under General Instruction G(3) to Form 10-K. Only those sections of the 2007 Proxy Statement that specifically address the items set forth
herein are incorporated by reference.

ITEM 10.  DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by Item 10 is hereby incorporated by reference from our 2007 Proxy Statement under the captions �Election of
Directors� and �Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance.�

ITEM 11.  EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by Item 11 is hereby incorporated by reference from our 2007 Proxy Statement under the captions �Executive
Compensation� and �Director Compensation.�

ITEM 12.  SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by Item 12 is hereby incorporated by reference from our 2007 Proxy Statement under the caption �Security Ownership
of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management.�

ITEM 13.  CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information required by Item 13 is hereby incorporated by reference from our 2007 Proxy Statement under the captions �Certain
Transactions� and �Director Independence.�

ITEM 14.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES.

The information required by Item 14 is hereby incorporated by reference from our 2007 Proxy Statement under the caption �Audit Fees.�

PART IV

ITEM 15.  EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a)  Documents filed as part of this Report

1.  The following financial statements are filed herewith:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Statements of Income for the Fiscal Years ended March 31, 2005, 2006, and 2007

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2006 and 2007

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders� Equity for the Fiscal Years ended March 31, 2005, 2006, and 2007

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Fiscal Years ended March 31, 2005, 2006, and 2007
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.  Financial Statement Schedule

Schedule II�Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

3.  Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed as part of this report or hereby incorporated by reference to exhibits previously filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission:

Exhibit No. Description
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Stanley, Inc., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Pre-Effective

Amendment No. 2 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-134053), filed July 28, 2006.
3.3 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Stanley, Inc., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to Pre-Effective Amendment No. 2

to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-134053), filed July 28, 2006.
4.1 Specimen Stock Certificate, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Pre-Effective Amendment No. 2 to the Registration

Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-134053), filed July 28, 2006.
10.1* Executive Deferred Compensation and Equity Incentive Plan, as of January 30, 2002, incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.6 to Pre-Effective Amendment No. 2 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-134053), filed
July 28, 2006.

10.2* Executive Deferred Compensation and Equity Incentive Plan Trust, as of March 5, 2004, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.7 to Pre-Effective Amendment No. 2 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-134053), filed
July 28, 2006.

10.3* Change in Control and Severance Agreement, dated March 20, 2006, between the Company and Brian J. Clark, incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Pre-Effective Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File
No. 333-134053), filed June 26, 2006.

10.4 Revolving Credit and Term Loan Agreement, dated as of February 16, 2006, among Stanley, Inc., as Borrower, the Lenders
From Time to Time Party Hereto, and SunTrust Bank, as Administrative Agent, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to
Pre-Effective Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-134053), filed June 26, 2006.

10.5 Security Agreement, dated as of February 16, 2006, among Stanley, Inc., as Borrower, the Subsidiaries of the Borrower Party
Hereto, as Grantors, and SunTrust Bank, as Administrative Agent, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to
Pre-Effective Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-134053), filed June 26, 2006.

10.6 Subsidiary Guaranty Agreement, dated as of February 16, 2006, among the Subsidiaries of Stanley, Inc. Listed on Schedule I
Thereto, and SunTrust Bank, as Administrative Agent, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Pre-Effective
Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-134053), filed June 26, 2006.

10.7* Amendment No. 1 to Executive Deferred Compensation and Equity Incentive Plan, as of June 28, 2006, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.12 to Pre-Effective Amendment No. 2 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File
No. 333-134053), filed July 28, 2006.
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10.8* 2006 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to Pre-Effective Amendment No. 2
to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-134053), filed July 28, 2006.

21.1 List of subsidiaries of Stanley, Inc.
23.1 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP.
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002.

*  Denotes management contract or compensation plan or arrangement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

STANLEY, INC.
/s/ BRIAN J. CLARK
Brian J. Clark
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
June 1, 2007

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following person on behalf of the
Registrant and in the capacity and on the dates indicated.

/s/ PHILIP O. NOLAN
Philip O. Nolan
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)
June 1, 2007
/s/ BRIAN J. CLARK
Brian J. Clark
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Financial Officer)
June 1, 2007
/s/ THOMAS R. FRADETTE
Thomas R. Fradette
Vice President and Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)
June 1, 2007
/s/ GEORGE H. WILSON
George H. Wilson
Executive Vice President for Strategic Operations and Director
June 1, 2007
/s/ WILLIAM E. KARLSON
William E. Karlson
Senior Vice President, Outsourcing Solutions and Director
June 1, 2007
/s/ LAWRENCE A. GALLAGHER
Lawrence A. Gallagher
Director
June 1, 2007
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/s/ JAMES C. HUGHES
James C. Hughes
Director
June 1, 2007
/s/ JOHN P. RICEMAN
John P. Riceman
Director
June 1, 2007
/s/ GENERAL JIMMY D. ROSS
General
Jimmy D. Ross, USA (Ret.)
Director
June 1, 2007
/s/ LT. GENERAL RICHARD L. KELLY
Lt. General Richard L. Kelly, USMC (Ret.)
Director
June 1, 2007
/s/ CHARLES S. REAM
Charles S. Ream
Director
June 1, 2007
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors
Stanley, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Stanley, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the �Company�) as of March 31, 2006 and 2007,
and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders� equity, and cash flows for the three years in the period ended
March 31, 2007. Our audits also included the consolidated financial statement schedule listed at Item 15(a)(2). These consolidated financial
statements and consolidated financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company�s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements and consolidated financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting.
Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company�s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of
March 31, 2006 and 2007, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the three years in the period ended March 31, 2007 in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, the consolidated financial
statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material
respects the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements, effective April 1, 2006, the Company changed its method of accounting for
stock-based compensation to conform to FASB Statement No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

McLean, Virginia
May 31, 2007
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STANLEY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Year Ended March 31,
2005 2006 2007

Revenues $ 282,456 $ 284,801 $ 409,411
Operating costs and expenses:
Cost of revenues 243,677 241,357 343,628
Selling, general and administrative 16,844 19,709 30,700
Amortization of deferred compensation 372 790 5,082
Depreciation and amortization 2,327 3,057 5,424
Impairment of intangible assets � 3,590 �
Total operating costs and expenses 263,220 268,503 384,834
Operating income 19,236 16,298 24,577
Other income (expense):
Other income (expense) 2 101 (478 )
Interest expense�net (822 ) (2,441 ) (5,918 )
Total other expenses (820 ) (2,340 ) (6,396 )
Income before taxes 18,416 13,958 18,181
Provision for income taxes (7,184 ) (5,708 ) (7,476 )
Net income $ 11,232 $ 8,250 $ 10,705
Earnings per share:
Basic $ 0.78 $ 0.58 $ 0.61
Diluted $ 0.70 $ 0.51 $ 0.55
Weighted average shares:
Basic 14,446 14,202 17,567
Diluted 16,117 16,096 19,458

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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STANLEY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands)

March 31, 2006 March 31, 2007
Assets
Current assets:
Cash $ � $ 12,736
Accounts receivable�net 81,732 110,029
Prepaid and other current assets 2,196 1,631
Total current assets 83,928 124,396
Property and equipment�net 10,083 11,736
Goodwill 87,832 88,249
Intangible assets�net 12,616 9,417
Deferred taxes � 2,010
Other assets 5,444 2,167
Total assets $ 199,903 $ 237,975
Liabilities and Stockholders� Equity
Current liabilities
Line of credit $ 10,409 $ �
Accounts payable 17,193 24,476
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 24,091 34,438
Current portion of long-term debt 1,000 1,000
Deferred income taxes 1,225 2,646
Income taxes payable 711 917
Total current liabilities 54,629 63,477
Long-term debt�net of current portion 99,000 36,750
Other long-term liabilities 3,514 3,596
Deferred taxes 371 �
Total liabilities 157,514 103,823
Commitments and contingencies:
Stockholders� equity
Common stock, $0.01 par value�200,000 authorized; 14,967 and 21,888 issued,
respectively 150 219
Additional paid-in capital 3,858 76,785
Retained earnings 47,640 58,345
Accumulated other comprehensive income � (161 )
Less: Treasury stock: 735 and 0 at cost, respectively (4,791 ) �
Deferred compensation (4,392 ) (1,036 )
Shareholder notes receivable (76 ) �
Total stockholders� equity 42,389 134,152
Total liabilities and stockholders� equity $ 199,903 $ 237,975

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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STANLEY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders� Equity
(in thousands)

Issued
Shares

Common
Stock

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Retained
Earnings

Treasury
Shares

Treasury
Stock

Deferred
Compensation

Shareholders�
Notes
Receivable

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income, Net
of Tax Total

BALANCE�April 1, 2004 14,967 $ 150 2,272 28,158 432 (747 ) (3,727 ) (1,012 ) � 25,094
Purchase of common stock for
Treasury � � � � 910 (4,505 ) � � � (4,505 )
Contribution of Treasury stock to
ESOP � � 835 � (225 ) 389 � � � 1,224
Exercise of stock options from
Treasury � � 4 � (126 ) 219 � � � 223
Issuance of shares from Treasury � � 118 � (48 ) 82 � � � 200
Amortization of deferred
compensation, net of cancelled
shares � � � � 3 (5 ) 377 � � 372
Forgiveness of shareholder loans � � � � � � � 727 � 727
Net income � � � 11,232 � � � � � 11,232
BALANCE, March 31, 2005 14,967 $ 150 3,229 39,390 946 (4,567 ) (3,350 ) (285 ) � 34,567
Purchase of common stock for
Treasury � � � � 665 (4,459 ) � � � (4,459 )
Contribution of Treasury stock to
ESOP � � 1,015 � (300 ) 1,485 � � � 2,500
Exercise of stock options from
Treasury � � (418 ) � (109 ) 531 � � � 113
Issuance of shares from Treasury � � 23 � (41 ) 202 � � � 225
Restricted stock grants � � (185 ) � (441 ) 2,080 (1,895 ) � � �
Amortization of deferred
compensation, net of canceled
shares � � � � 15 (63 ) 853 � � 790
Income tax benefit from employee
stock transactions � � 194 � � � � � � 194
Repayment of shareholder loans � � � � � � � 209 � 209
Net income � � � 8,250 � � � � � 8,250
BALANCE�March 31, 2006 14,967 $ 150 $ 3,858 $ 47,640 735 $ (4,791 ) $ (4,392 ) $ (76 ) � $ 42,389
Purchase of common stock for
Treasury � � � � 33 (259 ) � � � (259 )
Contribution of common stock to
ESOP 10 � 155 � � � � � � 155
Exercise of stock options 676 7 (2,596 ) � (690 ) 4,606 � � � 2,017
Issuance of shares from Treasury � � 32 � (30 ) 165 � � � 197
Restricted stock grants � � 6 � (48 ) 279 (285 ) � � �
Amortization of deferred
compensation, net of canceled
shares � � � � � � 5,082 � � 5,082
Income tax benefit from employee
stock transactions � � 1,624 � � � � � � 1,624
Shares sold in initial public
offering 6,235 62 71,724 � � � � � � 71,786
Deferred compensation � � 1,441 � � � (1,441 ) � � �
Stock compensation expense � � 541 � � � � � � 541
Repayment of shareholder loans,
net of reclassification � � � � � � � 76 � 76
Other comprehensive income, net
of tax � � � � � � � � (161 ) (161 )
Net income � � � 10,705 � � � � � 10,705
BALANCE�March 31, 2007 21,888 $ 219 $ 76,785 $ 58,345 � $ � $ (1,036 ) $ � $ (161 ) $ 134,152

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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STANLEY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in thousands)

Year Ended March 31,
2005 2006 2007

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $ 11,232 $ 8,250 $ 10,705
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 2,327 3,057 5,424
Amortization of deferred compensation 372 790 5,082
Impairment of intangible assets � 3,590 �
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 185 124 335
Deferred taxes (1,073 ) (2,855 ) (853 )
Stock contributed to employee stock ownership plan 1,224 2,500 155
Income tax benefit from stock-based compensation � � 1,624
Stock compensation expense � � 541
Other (70 ) 35 �
Changes in assets and liabilities�net of acquisition effects:
Increase in accounts receivable (10,343 ) (8,284 ) (28,297 )
Decrease in prepaid income taxes � � 2,650
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses and other current assets 270 (349 ) 612
Decrease in inventory 3,082 � �
(Increase) decrease in other assets (394 ) (2,112 ) 628
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable (6,097 ) (3,411 ) 7,283
Increase in accrued expenses 2,184 8,040 9,148

Increase in other liabilities 81 866 794
Increase (decrease) in income taxes payable 526 (17 ) 206
Net cash provided by operating activities 3,506 10,224 16,037
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of CCI�net of cash acquired � (557 ) �
Purchase of Morgan�net of cash acquired � (80,559 ) (417 )
Acquisition of property and equipment (997 ) (5,472 ) (3,865 )
Net cash used in investing activities (997 ) (86,588 ) (4,282 )
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net borrowings (repayments) under line-of-credit agreements 1,936 (10,805 ) (10,409 )
Borrowings on long-term debt � 100,000 �
Repayments on long-term debt (1,000 ) (8,833 ) (62,250 )
Payments under capital lease obligations (90 ) (86 ) (129 )
Purchase of treasury stock (4,505 ) (4,459 ) (259 )
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 223 113 2,017
Cash repayments from shareholders 727 209 28
Net proceeds from sale of stock in initial public offering � � 71,786
Proceeds from sale of treasury stock 200 225 197
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (2,509 ) 76,364 981
NET INCREASE IN CASH � � 12,736
CASH�Beginning of year � � �
CASH�End of year $ � $ � $ 12,736
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the year for:
Income taxes $ 7,719 $ 7,265 $ 6,529
Interest $ 857 $ 1,994 $ 6,268
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH TRANSACTIONS:
During 2006 the Company acquired certain businesses in transactions summarized as follows:
Fair value of tangible assets acquired $ � $ 16,237 $ �
Acquired amortized intangible assets � 8,350 �
Acquired unamortized intangible assets � 69,831 �
Cash paid, net of cash acquired � (80,559 ) �
Liabilities assumed $ � $ 13,859 $ �
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Assets obtained under a capital lease agreement $ 225 $ 51 $ 347

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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STANLEY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(in thousands, except share and per share data, or as otherwise noted)

1.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of Business�Stanley, Inc., together with its subsidiaries (�Stanley� or the �Company�), is a provider of
information technology services and solutions to U.S. defense and federal civilian government agencies. Stanley
offers its customers solutions to support any stage of program, product development or business lifecycle through five
service areas: systems engineering, enterprise integration, operational logistics, business process outsourcing and
advanced engineering and technology. The Company has derived substantially all of its revenue from U.S. federal
government agencies.

Basis of Presentation�The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles in the United States and pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission. In the opinion of management, these statements reflect all adjustments
necessary to fairly present the Company�s financial position as of March 31, 2006 and 2007, its results of operations
for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 and its cash flows for the fiscal years ended March 31,
2005, 2006 and 2007.

Principles of Consolidation�The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Stanley�s
wholly-owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments�The fair value of accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued expenses, note
payable, and swap contract approximates their respective carrying amounts.

Revenue Recognition�The Company recognizes revenue under its contracts when a contract has been executed, the
contract price is fixed and determinable, delivery of services or products has occurred, and collectibility is considered
probable and can be reasonably estimated. Revenue is earned under cost-plus-fee, fixed-price and time-and-materials
contracts. The Company uses a standard management process to determine whether all required criteria for revenue
recognition have been met, which includes regular reviews of the Company�s contract performance. This review
covers, among other matters, progress against a schedule, outstanding action items, effort and staffing, quality, risks
and issues, subcontract management, costs incurred, commitments, and customer satisfaction. During this review, the
Company determines whether the overall progress on a contract is consistent with the effort expended.

Under cost-plus-fee contracts, revenues are recognized as costs are incurred and include an estimate of applicable fees earned. The Company
considers fixed fees under cost-plus-fee contracts to be earned in proportion to the allowable costs actually incurred in performance of the
contract for level of effort contracts. For completion type cost-plus-fee contracts, fixed fees are earned in proportion to the percentage of work
completed. For time-and-materials contracts, revenues are computed by multiplying the number of direct labor-hours expended in performance
of the contract by the contractual billing rates and adding other billable direct and indirect costs. For fixed-price contracts, revenues are
recognized as services are performed, using the percentage-of-completion method, applying the cost-to-cost or units of delivery method, in
accordance with Accounting Research Bulletin No. 45 and American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) Statement of Position
81-1 �Accounting for Performance of Construction-Type and Certain Production-Type Contracts� (SOP 81-1).

Contract revenue recognition inherently involves the use of estimates. Examples of estimates include the contemplated level of effort to
accomplish the tasks under contract, the cost of the effort, and an ongoing assessment of the Company�s progress toward completing the contract.
From time to time, as part of the Company�s standard management process, facts develop that require the Company to revise its estimated total
costs and revenues. To the extent that a revised estimate affects contract profit or revenue previously recognized, the Company records the
cumulative effect of the revision in the period in which the
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facts requiring the revision become known. The full amount of an anticipated loss on any type of contract is recognized in the period in which it
becomes probable and can be reasonably estimated.

For cost-plus-award fee type contracts, the Company recognizes the expected fee to be awarded by the customer at the time such fee can be
reasonably estimated, based on factors such as prior award experience and communications with the customer regarding performance, including
any interim performance evaluations rendered by the customer. For cost-plus-incentive fee type contracts, the method of calculating incentive
fee is specified in the contract and it is typically based on measuring actual costs to perform the contract against a target cost to perform the
contract. The Company prepares periodic estimates to complete and adjusts the incentive fee as required based on the contract incentive fee
formula.

The Company�s contracts with agencies of the government are subject to periodic funding by the respective contracting agency. Funding for a
contract may be provided in full at inception of the contract or ratably throughout the contract as the services are provided. From time to time,
the Company may proceed with work based on customer direction prior to the completion and signing of formal contract documents. The
Company has a formal review process for approving any such work. Revenue associated with such work is recognized only when it can be
reliably estimated and realization is probable. The Company bases its estimates on previous experiences with the customer, communications
with the customer regarding funding status, and its knowledge of available funding for the contract or program. Pre-contract costs related to
unsuccessful contract bids are expensed in the period in which the Company is notified that the contract will not be issued.

Disputes occasionally arise in the normal course of the Company�s business due to events such as delays, changes in contract specifications, and
questions of cost allowability or collectibility. Such matters, whether claims or unapproved change orders in the process of negotiation, are
recorded at the lesser of their estimated net realizable value or actual costs incurred, and only when realization is probable and can be reliably
estimated. Claims against the Company are recognized where a loss is considered probable and can be reasonably estimated in amount.

The allowability of certain costs under government contracts is subject to audit by the government. Certain indirect costs are charged to contracts
using provisional or estimated indirect rates, which are subject to later revision based on government audits of those costs. The Company is of
the opinion that costs subsequently disallowed, if any, would not be significant.

Concentration of Risk�Contracts funded by federal government agencies account for substantially all of our revenues.
For the fiscal years ended March 31,   2005, 2006 and 2007, we derived approximately 70%, 61% and 65% of our
revenues, respectively, from the Department of Defense, including agencies within the intelligence community, and
approximately 30%, 39% and 35% of our revenues, respectively, from federal civilian government agencies. The
Company�s contract with the Department of State for the provision of passport processing and support services, which
is our largest revenue-generating contract, accounted for approximately 15%, 19% and 15% of our revenues for the
fiscal years ended March 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

Property and Equipment�Property and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation of
property and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method over the useful lives, ranging from three to
ten years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser of the useful life or the term of the lease. Repairs and
maintenance are expensed as incurred. Depreciation expense related to property and equipment was $1.0 million, $1.6
million and $2.2 million for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets�Goodwill represents the excess of cost over the fair value of net tangible and identifiable
intangible assets of acquired companies. During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, the Company continued its
evaluation of the purchase price allocation related to the acquisition of Morgan Research Corporation, or Morgan, in
February 2006. In connection with this evaluation, the

F-8

Edgar Filing: Stanley, Inc. - Form 10-K

72



Company determined that certain contracts required adjustment in order to reflect the fair value of the contracts acquired. In addition, a working
capital adjustment was required associated with the closing escrow. Accordingly, an adjustment was recorded during the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2007 which resulted in an increase to goodwill of $0.4 million.

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, the Company does not amortize goodwill; rather it tests goodwill for
impairment at least on an annual basis. Testing for impairment is a two-step process as prescribed by SFAS No. 142. The first step is a test for
potential impairment, while the second step measures the amount of impairment, if any. Under the guidelines of SFAS No. 142, the Company is
required to perform an impairment test at least on an annual basis at any time during the fiscal year provided the test is performed at the same
time every year. An impairment loss would be recognized when the assets� fair value is below their carrying value. Stanley has elected
December 31 as its testing date. Based on the testing performed as of December 31, 2006, the Company determined that no impairments existed
as of December 31, 2006. Based on the testing performed as of December 31, 2005, the Company believed that no impairments existed as of
December 31, 2005; however, in the quarter ended March 31, 2006, the Company recorded an aggregate charge of $3.6 million relating to the
impairment of the CCI and FSC trade names. The impairment arose as a result of the Company having completed substantially all of the
activities in connection with novating the contracts previously legally held by CCI and FSC. As such, the Company no longer ascribed any value
to the CCI and FSC trade names and that portion of the identified intangibles was written off. Customer relationships and other intangibles are
amortized on a straight-line basis over periods ranging from one to seven years.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets�Whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
long-lived assets may not be fully recoverable, Stanley evaluates the probability that future undiscounted net cash
flows, without interest charges, will be less than the carrying amount of the assets. If any impairment were indicated
as a result of this review, Stanley would recognize a loss based on the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds
the estimated fair value. Stanley believes that no impairments exist as of March 31, 2007.

Income Taxes�The provision for income taxes includes federal and state income taxes currently payable plus the net
change during the year in the deferred tax liability or asset. The current or deferred tax consequences of all events that
have been recognized in the financial statements are measured based on provisions of enacted tax law to determine the
amount of taxes payable or refundable in future periods.

Unbilled Receivables�Unbilled receivables include certain costs and a portion of the fee or expected profit, which is
billable upon completion or closeout of the contract. Amounts not billable within one year are not significant.

Stock-Based Compensation�As permitted under SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (�SFAS
No. 123�), Stanley accounted for its stock-based compensation plans using the intrinsic value method under the
recognition and measurement principles of APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (�APB
No. 25�), and related Interpretations. Stanley adopted SFAS No. 123(R), Share-based Payment (�SFAS No. 123(R)�), on
a prospective basis during the fiscal year beginning April 1, 2006. No stock-based employee compensation cost,
related to stock options, is reflected in net income for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2005 and 2006. The effect of
SFAS No. 123(R) is further described in Note 11.
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Earnings per share�Basic earnings per share has been computed by dividing net income available to common
stockholders by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during each period. Shares
issued during the period and shares reacquired during the period are weighted for the portion of the period that they
were outstanding. Diluted earnings per share considers the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other
contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted into common stock. The weighted average number of
common shares outstanding is computed as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended
March 31,
2005 2006 2007

Basic weighted average common shares outstanding 14,446 14,202 17,567
Effect of stock options and unvested restricted stock grants 1,671 1,894 1,891
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding 16,117 16,096 19,458

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities�In accordance with SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities (�SFAS No. 133�), as amended by SFAS No. 138, Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments
and Certain Hedging Activities, an Amendment of SFAS 133 and SFAS No. 149, Amendment of Statement 133 on
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, the fair value of the hedge arrangement is recorded as an asset or a
liability in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at March 31, 2007. For qualifying cash flow hedges, SFAS
No. 133, as amended, holds that the effective portion of derivative gains and losses be recorded as a component of
other comprehensive income and be reclassified into earnings in the same period in which the hedged transaction
affects such earnings. Any ineffectiveness is reported currently in earnings.

On March 15, 2004, Stanley entered into a swap agreement to reduce exposure to interest rate fluctuations on our floating rate debt
commitments. Under this interest rate swap agreement, the interest rate is fixed with respect to specified amounts of notional principal. Stanley�s
exposure under this agreement was limited to the impact of variable interest rate fluctuations and the periodic settlement of amounts due. On
March 27, 2006, Stanley entered into three additional swap commitments. Under these swap agreements, which became effective April 1, 2006,
the interest rate was fixed with respect to specified amounts of notional principal. Stanley�s exposure under these agreements was limited to the
impact of variable interest rate fluctuations and the periodic settlement of amounts due. The interest rate swap agreement entered into on
March 15, 2004 had a maturity date of December 13, 2013, a fixed rate of 3.49% and a notional amount of $7.3 million prior to its termination
effective October 25, 2006. The interest rate swap agreements entered into on March 27, 2006 with maturity dates of April 1, 2007, April 1,
2008 and April 2, 2012, fixed interest rates of 5.27%, 5.29% and 4.92%, and notional amounts of $10.0 million, $10 million, and $30.0 million,
respectively, were terminated effective October 25, 2006 resulting in a combined net realized gain of $0.1 million.

As required by its senior credit facility, Stanley entered into an interest rate swap agreement on October 27, 2006 with a maturity date of
January 31, 2012, an annual fixed rate of 5.28% and a notional amount of $19.0 million. The Company designated this swap agreement, at its
inception, as a qualifying cash flow hedge. The fair value of the swap at March 31, 2007 of $0.3 million has been reported in �Accrued expenses
and other liabilities� with an offset, net of tax, included in �Accumulated other comprehensive income� in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. None of
the $0.3 million unrealized loss was recognized in earnings during the year ended March 31, 2007 based on hedge ineffectiveness and none of
the swap�s unrealized loss was excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness. Amounts in accumulated other comprehensive income will
be reclassified into earnings in the period in which variable interest payments (the hedged transaction) are made under the senior credit facility.
There are currently no losses as of March 31, 2007 expected to be reclassified into earnings within the next 12 months.

Segment Reporting�Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which separate financial
information is available and evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker,
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or decision making group, in deciding how to allocate resources and assess performance. The Company currently has one reportable segment for
financial reporting purposes, which represents the Company�s core business of providing information technology solutions and services for
federal government customers. The Company does not report revenue by product or service or groups of products or services because it is
impracticable to do so. Additionally, substantially all of Stanley�s revenues and long-lived assets for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2005, 2006
and 2007 are related to operations in the United States.

Use of Estimates�The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Significant items
subject to such estimates and assumptions include revenue recognition, carrying amount and useful lives of long-lived
assets, valuation allowances for accounts receivable and deferred tax assets and loss contingencies, such as litigation,
claims and assessments.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards�In June 2006, the FASB issued Financial Interpretation No. 48 (FIN 48),
Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes�an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109. FIN 48 clarifies the
accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise�s financial statements. The interpretation
prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement
of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The Company is required to adopt FIN 48 beginning
fiscal year 2008 and the impact that the adoption of FIN 48 will have on our financial statements and notes thereto is
currently being evaluated.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157 (SFAS 157), Fair Value Measurements. SFAS 157
provides guidance for measuring the fair value of assets and liabilities. It requires additional disclosures related to the extent to which companies
measure assets and liabilities at fair value, the information used to measure fair value, and the effect of fair value measurements on earnings.
SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company is in the process of determining what effect, if any, the
adoption of SFAS 157 will have on our financial position or results of operations.

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 159 (SFAS 159),The Fair Value Option for Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities�Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115. SFAS 159 permits entities to measure many financial
instruments and certain other items at fair value to improve financial reporting by providing entities with the opportunity to mitigate volatility in
reported earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differently without having to apply complex hedge accounting. Most of the
provisions in SFAS 159 are elective. This statement will be effective for us in fiscal 2009, and may be applied prospectively. Early adoption is
permitted provided we also elect to apply the provisions of SFAS 157. We are in the process of determining what effect, if any, the application
of the provisions of SFAS 159 will have on our financial position and results of operations.

Reclassifications�Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year presentations to conform to the current
presentation. In fiscal year 2007, the Company reviewed the mapping of its operating expenses relative to cost of
revenues, and Selling, General & Administrative expenses, or SG&A. Cost of revenues are direct and indirect contract
costs, while SG&A expenses are period costs related to selling activities and overall support and management of the
business as a whole. As a result of this review, certain expenses previously classified as cost of revenues were
reclassified to SG&A to more closely align such costs with the income statement captions that best capture the nature
of the expenses. In the consolidated statements of income for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2005 and 2006, the
Company reclassified $6.4 million and $6.9 million, respectively, from cost of revenues to SG&A. This
reclassification had no effect on previously reported net operating expenses, net income or earnings per share.
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Stock Split and Amendment of Articles of Incorporation�On August 28, 2006, the Company increased the number of
authorized shares of common stock to 200,000,000 shares and on September 12, 2006, the Company completed a
thirty-for-one stock split of its outstanding common stock. The accompanying financial statements include the effects
of the stock split and the resulting increase in the number of authorized shares of common stock. All share and per
share amounts included in the accompanying financial statements for periods prior to the stock split have been restated
to reflect the stock split.

2.  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable consists of the following:

As of March 31,
2006 2007

Billed receivables $ 58,593 $ 73,676
Unbilled receivables 24,058 36,962
Allowance for doubtful accounts (919 ) (609 )
Total $ 81,732 $ 110,029

Unbilled accounts receivable at March 31, 2007 are expected to be billed and collected within one year except for $0.5 million.

3.  PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consists of the following:

As of March 31,
2006 2007

Computers and peripherals $ 3,379 $ 4,008
Software 1,184 1,882
Furniture and equipment 3,671 3,630
Leasehold improvements 4,814 6,417

13,048 15,937
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (2,965 ) (4,201 )
Property and equipment�net $ 10,083 $ 11,736
Property and equipment included above that are under capital lease obligations
include:
Software $ 225 $ 569
Furniture and equipment 58 80
Less: Accumulated depreciation (70 ) (158 )
Total $ 213 $ 491
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4.  GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2006 and 2007 are as follows:

FY 2006 FY 2007
Balance as of April 1 $ 17,974 $ 87,832
Goodwill acquired during the year in connection with the CCI acquisition 27 �
Goodwill acquired during the year in connection with the Morgan acquisition 69,831 417
Balance as of March 31 $ 87,832 $ 88,249

The components of acquired other intangible assets as of March 31, 2006, are as follows:

As of March 31, 2006
Gross Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization Total

Assets subject to amortization:
Customer relationships $ 6,580 $ (2,674 ) $ 3,906
Noncompete agreements 1,910 (551 ) 1,359
Backlog and contracts 7,540 (189 ) 7,351
Total $ 16,030 $ (3,414 ) $ 12,616

The components of acquired other intangible assets as of March 31, 2007, are as follows:

As of March 31, 2007
Gross Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization Total

Assets subject to amortization:
Customer relationships $ 6,580 $ (3,707 ) $ 2,873
Noncompete agreements 1,910 (1,210 ) 700
Backlog and contracts 7,540 (1,696 ) 5,844
Total $ 16,030 $ (6,613 ) $ 9,417

Aggregate amortization expense of other intangible assets was $1.3 million, $1.5 million and $3.2 million for the years ended March 31, 2005,
2006 and 2007, respectively. Other intangible assets are being amortized on a straight-line basis over a period of 1 to 7 years.

Estimated amortization expense is as follows for the periods indicated:

Years Ending March 31,
2008 $ 3,076
2009 2,552
2010 2,277
2011 1,512
Thereafter 0
Total $ 9,417
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5.  ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities consist of the following:

As of March 31,
2006 2007

Accrued payroll costs $ 8,776 $ 9,778
Accrued contract costs 11,305 19,131
Accrued indirect costs 2,731 2,807
Other payables 1,279 2,722
Total accrued expenses $ 24,091 $ 34,438

6.  DEBT

As of March 31,
2006 2007

Borrowings under the term loan and revolving line of credit:
Revolving line of credit $ 10,409 $ �
Term loan 100,000 37,750
Total debt 110,409 37,750
Less: Current portion (11,409 ) (1,000 )
Debt�net of current portion $ 99,000 $ 36,750

On February 16, 2006, in order to finance the acquisition of Morgan and to refinance its then-outstanding indebtedness, Stanley entered into a
new senior credit facility that included a $50.0 million revolving credit facility. As of March 31, 2007, Stanley had $36.8 million of term loan
indebtedness outstanding under its senior credit facility with a weighted average interest rate of 7.77% for the year ended March 31, 2007. As of
March 31, 2007, Stanley�s borrowing availability under its revolving credit facility was $49.9 million (including outstanding letters of credit). At
March 31, 2007, the Company was in compliance with all covenants under its senior credit facility. The obligations under our senior credit
facility are unconditionally guaranteed by each of our existing and subsequently acquired or organized subsidiaries and secured on a
first-priority basis by security interests (subject to permitted liens) in substantially all assets owned by us and each of our subsidiaries, including
the shares of capital stock of our subsidiaries, subject to certain exceptions.

7.  ACQUISTIONS

On February 16, 2006, Stanley acquired Morgan Research Corporation, a privately-held technology company providing engineering and
technology services to the federal government, for $76.0 million in cash at closing plus an additional $6.2 million in working capital and other
purchase price adjustments. Stanley financed the acquisition through term loan borrowings under a new senior credit facility.

On December 31, 2003, Stanley completed the acquisition of Fuentez Systems Concepts, Inc., an information technology company based in
Charleston, South Carolina, for $27.2 million, net of cash acquired. In accordance with SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations (�SFAS No. 141�),
the acquisition was accounted for under the purchase method of accounting. The purchase price has been allocated to the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed based upon the estimated fair values. Of the purchase consideration, $10.1 million has been allocated to goodwill, based upon
the excess of the purchase price over the $8.5 million estimated fair value of net tangible assets and the $9.1 million assigned to other
identifiable intangible assets. Goodwill of $10.1 million is deductible for tax purposes.
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Then on September 1, 2002, the Company purchased all the outstanding capital stock of CCI, Incorporated for $5.5 million, net of cash acquired.
The acquisition was accounted for under the purchase method of accounting, and accordingly, the results of CCI have been included in the
consolidated financial statements beginning September 2, 2002. The payment was financed through Stanley�s then existing credit facility. During
the years ended March 31, 2004, and March 31, 2005, Stanley paid $1.3 million and accrued $0.5 million, respectively, in additional
consideration. The amount accrued as of March 31, 2005, was paid on June 16, 2005. Of the purchase consideration, $5.3 million has been
allocated to goodwill, based upon the excess of the purchase price over the $1.9 million estimated fair value of net tangible assets, $2.2 million
assigned to other identifiable intangible assets, and $1.8 million in additional payments subsequent to the acquisition date.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, at the date of the acquisition.

CCI FSC Morgan
Current assets $ 4,305 $ 14,724 $ 15,606
Property and equipment, net 134 322 448
Other assets 86 51 183
Goodwill 3,490 10,115 69,831
Identified intangibles 2,170 9,100 8,350
Total assets acquired 10,185 34,312 94,418
Current liabilities 1,953 6,564 9,792
Other liabilities 658 � 4,067
Total liabilities assumed 2,611 6,564 13,859
Net assets acquired $ 7,574 $ 27,748 $ 80,559

Included in identified intangibles arising from the CCI acquisition is $1.6 million related to customer relationships which is being amortized
over a period of 6 years. Included in identified intangibles arising from the FSC acquisition are $5.0 million and $1.1 million related to customer
contracts and non-compete agreements, respectively, which are being amortized over periods of 6.5 years and 5 years, respectively. Included in
identified intangibles arising from the Morgan acquisition are $7.5 million and $0.8 million related to customer contracts and non-compete
agreements, respectively, which are being amortized over periods of 5 years and 2 years, respectively.

8.  INCOME TAXES

The provision for Federal and State income taxes for fiscal years ended March 31 consists of the following:

2005 2006 2007
Current income taxes:
Federal $ 6,835 $ 7,001 $ 7,560
State 1,422 1,562 769

8,257 8,563 8,329
Deferred income taxes:
Federal (885 ) (2,174 ) (1,150 )
State (188 ) (681 ) 297

(1,073 ) (2,855 ) (853 )
$ 7,184 $ 5,708 $ 7,476
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The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities at March 31 are as follows:

2006 2007
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

Current:
Accrued vacation $ 1,434 $ � $ 1,202 $ �
Bad debts 370 � 253 �
Unbilled revenue � (2,450 ) � (4,113 )
Prepaids � (615 ) � (230 )
Other 36 � 242 �
Total current 1,840 (3,065 ) 1,697 (4,343 )
Noncurrent:
Equity compensation 472 � 2,160 �
Depreciation � (606 ) � (1,636 )
Deferred Rent 503 � 579 �
Intangibles � (2,201 ) � (1,588 )
Morgan contracts 312 � 391 �
Leasehold improvements 1,136 � 2,104 �
State net operating loss 212 � � �
Interest rate swap � (189 ) � �
Other � (10 ) � �
Total noncurrent 2,635 (3,006 ) 5,234 (3,224 )
Total $ 4,475 $ (6,071 ) $ 6,931 $ (7,567 )

A reconciliation of the statutory Federal income tax rate with Stanley�s effective income tax rate at March 31 is as follows:

2005 2006 2007
Statutory Federal rate 35.00 % 35.00 % 35.00 %
State income taxes�net of Federal income tax benefit 4.36 4.91 4.07
Equity Compensation � � 1.65
Other (0.35 ) 0.98 0.40
Effective tax rates 39.01 % 40.89 % 41.12 %

9.  EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP PLAN

Stanley maintains an Employee Stock Ownership Plan (�ESOP�) designed to provide employee ownership of the Company�s stock. The ESOP is
generally available to all U.S. employees and is funded by periodic discretionary contributions approved by the Board of Directors.

Contributions to the ESOP for the year ended March 31, 2005, were $2.0 million, of which $0.8 million was contributed in cash and the
remainder was contributed in the form of 150,000 shares and 75,000 shares of Stanley�s common stock with a fair value, at the date of the
contribution, of $5.37 and $5.59 per share, respectively.

Contributions to the ESOP for the year ended March 31, 2006, were $2.5 million, all of which was contributed in the form of 150,000 shares,
75,000 shares and 75,000 shares of Stanley�s common stock with a fair value, at the date of the contribution, of $7.83, $8.26 and $9.93 per share,
respectively.
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Contributions to the ESOP for the year ended March 31, 2007 , were $0.2 million, all of which was contributed in the form of 10,000 shares of
Stanley�s common stock with a fair value, at the date of the contribution, of $15.47 per share.

Prior to its initial public offering, Stanley determined the fair market value of its stock utilizing various methods, including obtaining a
third-party valuation specialist. The fair market value per common share held by the ESOP was $6.94 and $9.93 as of March 31, 2005 and 2006,
respectively. The fair market value per common share held by the ESOP was $15.60 as of March 31, 2007.

10.  401(K) PLAN

Stanley maintains a 401(k) plan for substantially all its employees. Employees may elect to defer up to the maximum amount permissible under
the IRS code. After employees have completed a year of service, the Company matches 100% of the first 3% deferred and 50% of the next 2%
deferred. Company matching contributions are immediately vested.

Contributions by the Company to the 401(k) plan were $2.0 million, $2.3 million and $3.3 million for the years ended March 31, 2005, 2006 and
2007, respectively.

11.  STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY

Common Stock

Stanley has one class of common stock, with each share of common stock having one vote per share. Holders of common stock share equally in
any dividends declared by the board of directors.

Stanley purchased 600 shares from two of its shareholders, 327,060 shares from fifteen of its shareholders and 33,000 shares from one of its
shareholders during the years ended March 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively. The shares were recorded at cost.

Stanley exchanged 909,450 and 338,250 shares from the ESOP for cash during the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

Initial Public Offering

On October 23, 2006, Stanley completed its initial public offering of 5.3 million shares (6.3 million shares including shares sold by selling
stockholders) at a price of $13.00 per share. After full exercise of the underwriters� over-allotment option to purchase an additional 945,000
shares from the Company, aggregate net proceeds to the Company after underwriting discounts and offering expenses borne by the Company
were approximately $71.8 million. On October 23, 2006, the Company paid down $61.5 million of long-term debt with a portion of the net
proceeds from the offering.

Deferred Compensation and Stock Options

Under the 2006 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan (the �Omnibus Plan�), Stanley is authorized to provide awards for a maximum of
4,000,000 shares of common stock to any director, officer, employee or consultant. The Omnibus Plan allows for cash awards, restricted stock
awards, restricted stock units, stock appreciation rights, performance units, fully vested shares, option awards and other equity-related awards.
Vesting periods of these awards vary. Except as otherwise determined by the board of directors, the option awards may not have an exercise
price less than the fair market value of the common stock on the date the option is granted. No cash awards have been awarded for the periods
presented.

Prior to July 2006, under the Executive Deferred Compensation and Equity Incentive Plan (the �Executive Plan�), Stanley was authorized to
provide awards for a maximum of 15,000,000 shares of common stock to key employees and non-employee directors. The Executive Plan
allowed for cash awards,
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restricted stock awards, restricted stock trust awards and option awards. Vesting periods of these awards vary. Holders of restricted stock awards
have voting rights with respect to the awards. The Trustees of the restricted stock trust awards have voting rights with respect to the trust awards.
The option awards may have an exercise price that ranges from 85% to 110% of the fair market value of the common stock on the date the
option is granted.

For disclosure purposes, the fair value of each stock option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model.
Under the Black-Scholes model, the total value of options granted in 2005 and 2006 was $0.1 million and $0.1 million, respectively. These
options would be amortized on a pro forma basis based upon the vesting schedule specified in the option agreement. The weighted average fair
value of an individual option granted in 2005 and 2006 was $0.90 and $1.57, respectively. The fair value of Stanley�s stock-based option awards
to employees was estimated assuming no expected dividends and the following weighted-average assumptions:

March 31,
2005 2006

Volatility 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rate 4.23% 4.76%
Expected life (years) 7.5 years 7.5 years

A summary of stock option activity during the years ended March 31 is as follows:

2005 2006 2007

Shares

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price Shares

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price Shares

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

Outstanding, beginning of year 2,319,840 $ 1.39 2,279,940 $ 1.47 2,584,620 $ 2.10
Granted during the year 133,500 $ 3.37 445,500 $ 5.17 813,750 $ 8.00
Exercised during the year (126,300 ) $ 1.76 (109,020 ) $ 1.03 (1,365,384 ) $ 1.48
Forfeited during the year (47,100 ) $ 1.99 (31,800 ) $ 3.46 (18,000 ) $ 5.77
Outstanding, end of year 2,279,940 $ 1.47 2,584,620 $ 2.10 2,014,986 $ 4.87
Options exercisable, end of year 1,701,540 1,807,920 1,231,986

An option summary as of March 31, 2007 is presented below:

Options Shares

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Contractual
Term

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value ($000)

Outstanding at March 31, 2007 2,014,986 $ 4.87 6.5 $ 21,615
Exercisable at March 31, 2007 1,231,986 $ 2.85 5.4 $ 15,706
Unvested expected to vest at March 31, 2007 724,275 $ 8.05 8.3 $ 5,465

During the year ended March 31, 2007, the Company granted 813,750 stock option awards with a vesting period of five years. The options were
issued with a weighted-average exercise price of $8.00. The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the year ended March 31, 2007 was
$16.6 million.
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The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at March 31, 2007:

Exercise Price

Number
Outstanding
at
3/31/2007

Weighted
Average
Remaining Life (years)

Number
Exercisable
at
3/31/2007

0.53 121,120 1.0 121,120
1.44 136,800 2.0 136,800
1.78 215,400 3.2 215,400
1.68 5,940 4.6 5,940
2.05 4,890 5.5 4,890
2.35 183,600 6.1 183,600
2.59 108,000 6.1 108,000
2.80 3,570 6.3 3,570
3.33 9,600 6.9 9,600
3.33 114,000 7.1 114,000
3.72 2,700 7.3 2,700
4.22 177,116 8.1 177,116
4.22 3,000 8.2 3,000
5.50 13,500 8.6 13,500
6.56 102,000 8.9 102,000
6.56 30,750 9.0 30,750
7.86 645,000 9.1 �
8.65 123,750 4.1 �
7.86 7,500 3.2 �
15.90 6,750 9.8 �

2,014,986 1,231,986

Effective April 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123(R) using the prospective-transition method. Under that transition method,
compensation cost recognized in the year ended March 31, 2007 includes compensation cost for all share-based payment transactions granted on
or after April 1, 2006 based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R). The Company is
required to account for any portion of awards outstanding at the date of adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) using the accounting principles originally
applied to those awards.

As a result of adopting SFAS No. 123(R) on April 1, 2006, the Company�s income before income taxes and net income for the year ended
March 31, 2007, are $0.5 million and $0.3 million lower, respectively, than if it had continued to account for share-based payment transactions
under APB No. 25. Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended March 31, 2007 are $0.61 and $0.55, respectively, under SFAS
No. 123(R). Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended March 31, 2007 would have been $0.63 and $0.57, respectively, under APB
No. 25.

The Company has presented all tax benefits resulting from stock based compensation as operating cash flows in the Statement of Cash Flows
prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R). The tax benefits associated with stock based compensation in effect prior to the adoption of SFAS
No. 123(R) were $1.6 million for the year ended March 31, 2007. For share-based payment transactions awarded subsequent to the adoption of
SFAS No.123(R), the tax benefits in excess of the compensation cost recognized should be classified as financing cash flows. There were no
excess tax benefits associated with share-based payment transactions accounted for under SFAS No. 123(R).
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The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton closed-form option-pricing model that uses
the assumptions noted in the following table. Expected volatility is based on a weighted-average of the historical volatilities of similar public
entities. The valuation model includes an assumed forfeiture rate of 7.5 percent. The expected term of options granted is derived using the
simplified method and represents the period of time that options granted are expected to be outstanding. Options granted meet the criteria of
�plain vanilla� for purposes of applying the simplified method. The risk-free rate for periods within the contractual life of the option is based on
U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant.

As of
March 31, 2007

Expected volatility 35.8%
Expected dividends 0.0%
Expected term (in years) 3.3-6.5
Risk-free rate 4.6%-5.1%

During the year ended March 31, 2007, the Company recognized $0.5 million of share-based employee compensation costs related to stock
option awards. No share-based employee compensation cost, related to stock option awards, is reflected in net income for the years ended
March 31, 2005 and 2006. As of March 31, 2007, there was $2.1 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested
share-based compensation arrangements granted under the Omnibus Plan during the year ended March 31, 2007. That cost is expected to be
recognized over a weighted-average period of 4.1 years.

The following table illustrates, in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R), the effect on net income and earnings per share if the
Company had applied the fair value recognition provision of SFAS No. 123(R) to stock-based employee compensation for stock option awards
granted prior to April 1, 2006.

Year Ended
March 31, 2007

Net income, as reported $ 10,705
Add: stock-based compensation, included in net income as reported, net of related tax
effects �
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense as determined under the
fair value method for all awards, net of related tax effects (423 )
Pro forma net income $ 10,282
Basic earnings per share:
As reported $ 0.61
Pro forma $ 0.59
Diluted earnings per share:
As reported $ 0.55
Pro forma $ 0.53

During the year ended March 31, 2007, there were no modifications to share-based payment transactions.

During the year ended March 31, 2007, the Company granted 11,250 restricted stock awards and 15,000 restricted stock trust awards at a fair
market value of $7.54 per share with a vesting period of two years. Additionally, during the year ended March 31, 2007, the Company granted
21,600 restricted stock awards at a fair market value of $10.28 per share with a vesting period of one year. The assumed forfeiture rate
applicable to the restricted shares granted in the year ended March 31, 2007 was zero percent.
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Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), the fair market value of each issuance and grant was determined by the Company on a
contemporaneous basis. The Company recorded stock-based deferred compensation of approximately $1.4 million in connection with
compensatory grants of stock options and shares of restricted stock awarded during fiscal 2006 and 2007. Approximately, $0.4 million of
compensation expense, which includes the $0.1 million below, was recognized during the year ended March 31, 2007. The remaining deferred
compensation will be amortized over the remaining four year vesting period of the awards.

In connection with the completion of the Company�s initial public offering in the year ended March 31, 2007, 1,377,210 shares of restricted stock
grants and 640,050 employee stock options became fully-vested. Accordingly, the Company recorded a charge of $4.1 million and $0.1 million,
respectively, related to the vesting of the restricted shares and certain of the employee stock options which had been granted at less than fair
market value within one year of the completion of the offering. This charge has been reflected in the accompanying statement of income as
amortization of deferred compensation during the year ended March 31, 2007.

12.  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Operating Leases�Stanley leases buildings and equipment under various operating leases with lease terms ranging from
one month to ten years. The rental payments under certain of the leases are based on a minimum rental plus a
percentage of the operating expenses. The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments required
under operating leases that have initial non-cancelable lease terms in excess of one year as of March 31, 2007:

Fiscal Year Ending March 31,
Minimum Lease
Commitments

2008 $ 7,382
2009 6,198
2010 5,739
2011 4,575
2012 2,605
Thereafter 9,257
Total $ 35,756

Total rent expense for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 was $4.1 million, $5.6 million and $6.8 million, respectively.

Capital Leases�Stanley has capital lease arrangements for certain office equipment and software licenses that are
included in property and equipment in the accompanying balance sheets in the amount of less than $0.2 million and
$0.5 million, net of accumulated depreciation, at March 31, 2006 and March 31, 2007, respectively. The assets under
capital leases are amortized on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the respective useful lives or the lease term. The
obligations are collateralized by the related leased equipment.
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Future minimum lease payments required under the capital leases at March 31, 2007, are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending March 31,
Minimum
Lease Commitments

2008 $ 150
2009 144
2010 92
Total Minimum lease payments 386
Less: Amount representing interest (39 )
Present value of minimum lease payments 347
Less: Current portion (127 )
Long-term portion $ 220

Contract Cost Audits�Substantially all payments to Stanley under cost-reimbursable contracts and subcontracts with the
U.S. Government are provisional payments, which are subject to potential adjustments upon audit by the Defense
Contract Audit Agency. Audits through March 31, 2004 have been completed. In the opinion of management,
adjustments resulting from the audits of all subsequent years are not expected to have a material effect on the
Company�s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

13.  UNAUDITED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA

Unaudited summarized financial data by quarter for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2006 and 2007 is presented in the table below.

June 30 September 30 December 31 March 31
(in thousands, except per share data)

Fiscal 2007
Revenues $ 92,555 $ 98,191 $ 102,023 $ 116,642
Operating income 6,095 6,855 3,083 8,544
Net income 2,484 2,422 1,260 4,539
Basic EPS $ 0.17 $ 0.16 $ 0.06 $ 0.21
Diluted EPS $ 0.15 $ 0.15 $ 0.06 $ 0.20
Fiscal 2006
Revenues $ 64,827 $ 66,859 $ 68,936 $ 84,179
Operating income 4,104 5,317 5,382 1,495
Net income 2,370 2,905 2,956 19
Basic EPS $ 0.17 $ 0.20 $ 0.22 $ 0.00
Diluted EPS $ 0.15 $ 0.18 $ 0.19 $ 0.00

14.  SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On April 1, 2007, Stanley purchased all of the outstanding membership interests of Techrizon, LLC for $30.3 million. Techrizon is a software,
simulation and information security services company based in Lawton, OK. The acquisition was financed with cash and borrowings under our
senior credit facility.
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STANLEY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Schedule II�Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
(in thousands)

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Balance at
beginning of
period

Charged to
costs and
expenses

Acquired in
business
combinations Deductions

Balance at
end of
period

2005 699 148 � � 847
2006 847 322 � (250 ) 919
2007 919 247 20 (577 ) 609
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